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BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

August, 3 2005

[Members Present:  Branch, Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young]

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I would like to call the August meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to order and welcome all of you to the meeting.  Initially I’d like to ask Mr. Farrar from the County Attorney’s Office to make some preliminary remarks.

MR FARRAR:  Good afternoon, everyone.  My name’s Brad Farrar from the Richland County Attorney’s Office.  I’m going to make some opening remarks about the procedure of the Board and take any questions that you might have.  As an initial matter if you have a cell phone or pager if you could turn that to off or vibrate we would appreciate it.  We don’t want to pick that up on the recording system.  The Board of Zoning Appeals is what they call a quasi-court.  It’s not a court of law but it is similar in terms of types of cases it hears and taking evidence and testimony and issuing a decision.  The process is fairly straightforward.  The applicant has up to 15 minutes to present his or her case.  You don’t have to take the full time but you certainly can that includes any witnesses that the applicant brings.  You can do whatever’s appropriate to your case.  You can make a video presentation, you can present exhibits, what have you or just testify from the podium.  Those in opposition have three minutes each to state your opposition to special exception to the variance which are the types of cases that we have on the agenda today.  And then the applicant has up to five minutes of rebuttal.  And so if you notice the order of proceedings it’s the applicant, then opposition, and then the applicant’s back at the end.  The reason for that is it comes back to the quasi-court nature of the process.  The applicant bears the burden of establishing why he or she should get the special exception or variance.  You may have heard the term burden of proof.  It’s simply related to that.  The testimony will be given under oath.  In a moment I will ask everyone who is going to testify to stand as a group and we’ll swear you in as a group to kind of expedite that and your testimony will be under oath so just remember that.  It will be recorded in case you need a copy of the transcript for any purpose later on.  The Board will consider exhibits that you offer.  Some things carry more weight than others.  For example, an affidavit or something that’s sworn to would carry more weight than an unsigned note or a petition.  Sworn testimony would carry more weight than testimony not given under oath.  That’s just kind of a basic evidentiary type of requirement.  The effect of a Board’s decision, once a case is heard, you’ll actually have a decision rendered in open session here today.  Sometimes with the court you may have to wait awhile to get a decision but you’ll have a decision today.  But it’s what I call a conditional decision.  That sounds like a lawyer word.  What’s the condition?  Well the condition is that the case of a Board is not final until the minutes from which that decision have been heard, have been approved.  So, for example, cases that are heard today at the August meeting of the Board, very likely the minutes from today’s meeting will be prepared and available for the first Wednesday in September when we come back for the September meeting of the Board.  You don’t have minutes that are two years old that are just now getting approved.  It’s usually the next month or maybe the month after if something comes up.  But it’s a fairly short turnaround.  But during that period, the reason I mention this is that any member of the Board under the Board’s rules and bylaws could move to reconsider a case, if some new evidence comes up.  An example I’ll give you, you know, if an applicant comes in and wants to put a carport that goes a couple feet into the side yard setback and they need a variance to do that; a pretty straightforward request.  They come in, it sounds good.  There’s some unique problem with the structure or their configuration of their land.  Maybe they need that extra space to get their vehicle in, what have you.  Nobody speaks in opposition to it; again, pretty simple request.  It may be approve and it may be approved unanimously by the Board.  Well before the minutes are approved the next door neighbor who could have been out of the country during that case or unavailable to attend may come in and say, “Well wait a second.  Nobody else may care about it but I do.  It’s right next to my house.  It’s interfering with my use of the property”.  And so you get that information to the Board, a member may want to reconsider the case.  And that, of course, would be new evidence or new testimony that was not available to the Board at the time of the original hearing.  That’s the reason you’d have a consideration.  You can’t have a reconsideration simply because the party wants another bite at the apple; just didn’t like the original hearing.  You’ve got to have some new evidence or information.  And so the reason I mention this is I’m attorney for the Board not for anybody else who’s going to speak in front of the Board but as a means of understanding the process, decisions do not become final until the minutes have been approved.  So just keep that in mind.  However, once the minutes have been approved, you do have a final decision of the Board.  However, and again this is another - there’s always a however.  Under state law, under Title VI and this is not a complicated process but anyone who has been aggrieved by a decision of the Board may appeal that decision to circuit court.  And again you simply state why – it’s got to be as a matter of law that the Board erred in your decision in that particular case.  You will get a hearing in front of a single judge.  It’ll be a judge who’s sitting essentially as an appellate body at that point.  It won’t be a rehearing of the case with new testimony but it will be a look at the Record and that’s the appeal process.  Then once the appeal is over, if there is an appeal, you absolutely have a final decision of the Board.  This is not something that you probably are going to have a lot of uncertainly about.  You’re probably going to know from the opposition, if any, and the level of opposition whether or not this is a case – yours is a case that could be headed towards an appeal.  And a person does not have an unlimited period of time to file the appeal.  Thirty days after the decision the Board’s been mailed a person must have filed the appeal.  After that it’s time barred.  Those are probably the two biggest things I want to talk about, the reconsideration and the appeal process.  Is there any questions about any of those?  I want to make sure you understand those rights.  Okay, very good.  A couple of other housekeeping items.  People ask me, “Well gee you know my case maybe pretty far down the agenda.  Do I have to sit here the whole time?  Can I come and go?”  This is a public meeting.  You’re free to come and go as you like.  We just ask that you do it quietly and head out the door here, but you’re free to come and go, you know, restrooms right outside.  If you need a drink of water, use the phone.  We would just request you do that in the hallway and it’d be fine.  The Board consists of seven members.  We have six members today.  It’s more than enough to conduct business, to have a quorum but it’s not a full panel.  If, for any reason, you would like to wait until a full panel is available and there maybe absences next month, we don’t know what the schedule’s going to be like, you certainly can make that request to the Board.  You may want a full panel to hear your case and they’ll certainly entertain that type of request.  Now given that we have an even number of members you could have a tie vote.  There’s a somewhat unusual process that’s in the county ordinance that pertains to the effect of a tie vote that I want to mention briefly in case this comes up.  I won’t give you an example but the upshot is that if you have a tie vote, somebody moves to approve an item and that fails,  somebody makes a motion at that point to deny the item and that results in a tie, the matter is carried over until the next available meeting of the Board.  So rather than have that item defeated for lack of a majority which is kind of the traditional notions of parliamentary procedure, you have this process that carries over to next month.  It’s what’s in the code.  It’s - the history behind that I won’t detain you with but that’s what’s in the code.  If it comes up again I will be more than happy to explain in more detail but that’s effect of the tie vote.  I believe that is the bulk of the process.   Since - we only have four cases today, there were six properties posted.  I do want to make sure that you’re not here for either of the cases that were deferred.  Case 05-77 a special exception with Jonathan Yates has been deferred.  This is I believe is a cell tower case.  That has been deferred.  And case 05-86 SE Vicky Murray, 3624 Hoyt Street’s been deferred.  If you’re here for either of those cases, next time they could be heard will be September so you - please note that.  Otherwise, we only have four cases.  At this time if there are any questions I’d be happy to take them.  If not, we can proceed.  Okay.  If you’re going to speak on a case, you need to be on a sign up sheet for that case and that’s so we can get in touch with you if we need to or we have you for the Record.  If you have not done that but you do intend to testify, don’t worry you can come down and sign up after I conclude.  But whether you’ve signed up or not if you’re going to speak to a case if you would at this time please stand and raise your right hand, I will swear you in as a group.  Do you swear or affirm that the testimony you should give shall be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth so help you God?  

AUDIENCE:  I do.

MR. FARRAR:  Please be seated.  Thank you very much.  If anyone said anything other than “yes” or “I do” or “right”, let me know otherwise I will consider you sworn as a group.  And I’ll turn it back over to the chairman.  Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Thank you.  Before we proceed I’d like to recognize that we have a new member on the Board today, Mr. Gregory Branch.  And we’re delighted to have him and look forward to having him for a considerable period of time now.  Welcome.  When we’re blessed with the presence of Mr. Price we’ll continue.  Mr. Price, first case, please.

CASE 05-75-SE:

MR. PRICE:  First item Item A [sic], case 05-75 Special Exception.  The applicant is Mary Lindsay.  The applicant is requesting the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant a special exception to permit the establishment of a family daycare on property zoned RS-2.  The location is 338 Penrose Drive.  The parcel’s a little more than a fourth of an acre and the property has an existing single-family residential structure.  A double driveway leads to the garage.  Actually the garage is enclosed at this time.  There’s a second driveway that leads to the rear of the property and a fence encloses the rear.  The applicant proposes to establish a daycare for a maximum of six children.  The ages of the children will range from newborn to two years of age.  The proposed hours of operation are 7:00 am to 6:00 pm.  This is located in the Meadowlake subdivision.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mrs. Lindsay.  Will you come down and tell the Board what it is you want to do, please.  

TESTIMONY OF MARY LINDSAY:
MS. LINDSAY:  Okay.  My name’s Mary Lindsay, 338 Penrose Drive, Columbia.  The same thing.  I just want to say that I got things settled that was told to correct it, that was told for me to do and I just hope that you’d reconsider and let me continue keeping my children because that is my living and I’ve been doing it for quite awhile and enjoy doing it and I don’t have anything other to say that this – I hope that you’ll reconsider and let me be able to continue to keep my children.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mrs. Lindsay.  One of the requirements of the ordinance is that you be able to load and unload the children off the public right-of-way.  How do you anticipate complying with that requirement?

MS. LINDSAY:  Well that has not been a problem, you know.  They all come at different times and they come in the yard and, you know, get the children out.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  The cars come in the yard?

MS. LINDSAY:  Yeah, right in the driveway.  

MS. DORSEY:  Ms. Lindsay, how many driveways do you have available for that?

MS. LINDSAY:  It’s two  

MS. DORSEY:  So there’s one on either side?

MS. LINDSAY:  Yes.  Uh-huh (affirmative).

MS. DORSEY:  Ms. Lindsay, would you go into a little detail about what you’ve done to improve the conditions in the backyard?

MS. LINDSAY:  Okay.  I have put up a private fence.  I have put up also a private storage to put items in also.  And I put up a door to the porch that was there.  Of course, my children don’t come out but I still have a porch, you know, a door there.  And all this stuff, there’s nothing in the back.  Now everything’s cleared up there.  

MS. DORSEY:  How long have you been operating your day care?

MS. LINDSAY:  Ten years.

MS. DORSEY:  And have you ever been cited – has this always been under the requirements as prescribed by DSS?

MS. LINDSAY:  Yes.

MS. DORSEY:  Have you ever had a citation from DSS?

MS. LINDSAY:  No.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Have you been inspected by DDS, or DSS?

MS. LINDSAY:  I have - every year I get, you know, an inspection letter.  Every year I obtain one letting me know that I can continue to keep children. 

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  No.  My question is have you ever had a representative from DSS actually come and physically inspect your house?

MS. LINDSAY:  No.  Because the requirements are six children and if it’s over six then, you know.

MS. DORSEY:  Alright.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any other questions of Mrs. Lindsay?

MR. PRICE:  No.  I was just gonna – kind of a correction from my understanding.  It depends on how you go in.  It’s not so much the number of children but depending if you go in as a ,I think, a registered daycare center determines how often they’re going to come out and inspect the home.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Yeah.  I understand.  Thank you.  Any questions by any members of the Board for Mrs. Lindsay?

MS. PERKINS:  Mrs. Lindsay, there is another occupation you have, there’s another occupational license in your home that is operating out of your home?  From the gentleman; is he your husband?  The gentleman.

MS. LINDSAY:  Is he licensed?

MS. PERKINS:  Is there - do you have a license to run another business, an occupation – home occupation license in your home already?

MS. LINDSAY:  I don’t think so.  I mean, I’m not understanding.  

MS. PERKINS:  How many people live in your home?

MS. LINDSAY:  Just two.

MS. PERKINS:  You and your husband or significant other? 

MS. LINDSAY:  Yes.

MS. PERKINS:  Does he have a license to operate a home occupation in your house?

MS. LINDSAY:  Like doing work and stuff around the house?

MS. PERKINS:  Yes.

MS. LINDSAY:  Yes.  Yes.  He does.

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.  So you’re asking - then we would be granting two home occupation licenses?

MS. LINDSAY:  No.  Just the daycare.  

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.

MS. LINDSAY:  Just the day care.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any further questions of Mrs. Lindsay?  Alright.  Thank you, ma’am.  There are a number of people signed up in opposition.  We’ll give you a chance to come back and rebut any testimony that you hear after they’ve had their opportunity.  The first person I have signed up is Frank Wilson.  

TESTIMONY OF FRANK WILSON:

MR. WILSON:  Good afternoon.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Would you state your name for the Record?

MR. WILSON:  I am Frank Wilson.

CHAIRMAN BROWN.  Thank you.  

MR. WILSON:  I live at 121 Blanchard Drive.  A couple blocks over from the applicant that’s asking for it.  Our neighborhood is a residential neighborhood and as you know most residential neighborhoods really don’t want businesses run out the home.  I’m against it because it can cause problems maybe for other people next door to these homes and so forth and once we can let this happen, you know, it’s opening the door for all - anybody else who want to put daycares out there and I’m just totally against that.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Questions for Mr. Wilson?

MS. DORSEY:  Mr. Wilson, are you aware that the county code allows child daycare facilities under certain requirements?

MR. WILSON:  No.  I’m not aware of certain requirements.  What requirements are you referring to?

MS. DORSEY:  Well its part of the county code 26-[inaudible].  The general requirements which we tend to judge, if those are met, include fencing, play equipment, loading and unloading space, signs.  But the county code does allow for child daycare facilities within RS-1, RS1A, RS2, RRR or G1.  Those are residential neighborhoods.

MR. WILSON:  I understand that this case has been heard before and was voted down before and they asked for a special appeal.  

MS. DORSEY:  And it was –

MR. WILSON:  What was the special appeal for it to come back?

MS. DORSEY:  It was accepted as a reconsideration.

MR. WILSON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

MR. BRANHAM:  That was a question that I was going to ask you.  We hear that case I believe, Mr. Chairman, it was in June when we originally heard the case.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I believe so.

MR. BRANHAM:  And we considered last month a rehearing?  In June if I remember there was no opposition?

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I think that’s correct.

MR. WILSON:  There was opposition.  [inaudible]  

MR. BRANHAM:  Well let me finish if I can.  A little opposition, if any.  Have you been aware over the last ten years that Mrs. Lindsay has run a day care in her home?

MR. WILSON:  No.  I have not.

MR. BRANHAM:  You have not?

MR. WILSON:  I have not been aware that it even existed there.

MR. BRANHAM:  Okay.  

MR. BRANCH:  Specifically what kind of problems are you saying that this represents for the community?

MR. WILSON:  She said that she had a place where they can unload kids.  I have seen the property and I don’t see how you can safely unload kids in a residential neighborhood on the street close like her house is plus the back yard area is - is basically have a lot of overgrowth stuff all back there.  I don’t know how bad it is but they can see it from the street some parts of it.  And you have to also think about the safety of the children if they ever get outside to go out and to play.  

MS. DORSEY:  Sir, that’s been the main concern of this Board is the safety of those children.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any further questions for Mr. Wilson?  Alright.  Thank you, sir.  Next person I have signed up is Gloria Cannon.

TESTIMONY OF GLORIA CANNON:

MS. CANNON:  Hello.  My name is Gloria Cannon at 605 Scarsdale Drive.  I’m opposed to the day care center mainly because it’s going to affect the streets.  Two cars can pass in the street together.  But when you got a car who’s stopped to let kids out, to me it presents a safety hazard, you know, for the kids unloading in the street.  And I know she said that they pull up in the driveway but in some cases all the cars are not going to be able to get in that driveway.  Because the driveway is only going to hold x amount of cars.  So what are you going to do with these other kids who are coming in?  Are you going to tell them well you have to wait until this car moves out of the driveway so that I can park in?  And also I just feel that when you start a business, and I know you said that under you know the law they can do this, but you get an influx of other type of businesses that to me would be undesirable.  You know, cares, you know, out of a residence it’s fine with me.  I have no problem against that.  But I just feel that we need to preserve our neighborhood and try to keep certain type businesses out of it – well businesses period out of the neighborhood.  It’s a residential neighborhood and that’s just the way I look at it.  And that’s totally why I’m against it and to me it’s just not safe to unload kids in the street and that’s my main concern.  And I know what she said but if you look at that driveway there’s no way you could safely unload those children.

MS. DORSEY:  Ma’am, have you ever observed children being unloaded from the street at the Ms. Lindsay’s house?

MS. CANNON:  I have not.  No.  

MR. TOLBERT:  Were you aware that she’s been in business there for ten years?

MS. CANNON:  No.  I was not aware of that, sir.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any further questions for Ms. Cannon?  Alright. Thank you, ma’am.  J.C. Black.  

TESTIMONY OF J.C. BLACK:

MR. BLACK:  Good afternoon.  My name is J.C. Black and I live at 513 Newberry Drive, which is right across the street from the lady.  And I don’t approve of a daycare because anyway, anyway be - I have trouble getting in and out my driveway going to work and from work.  I count four to five cars be waiting to get in and out to put the children out.  Some of them put them out in the street.  

MS. PERKINS:  So are you saying you’ve seen –

MR.  BLACK:  Beg your pardon?

MS. PERKINS:  - the children have been put out on the street?

MR. BLACK:  In the street.  They goes into the house. 

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.  Are you telling me that you witnessed that?

MR. BLACK:  Right. 

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Did you ever make a complaint Mr. Black to the county or anyone about that?

MR. BLACK:  Right.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Did you?

MR. BLACK:  Right. 

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  You did make complaints?

MR. BLACK:  Beg your pardon?

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Did you make complaints to the county about the fact that she –

MR. BLACK:  Well no.  I didn’t make no complaint to the county because I live directly across the street.  I’ve been there pretty close to about 35 years.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Were you aware that she was running a day care out of her home?

MR. BLACK:  Right.  I’m aware of it.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  And you’ve been aware of that?

MR. BLACK:  Well not to her direct.  But I make complaint to some of the others in the neighborhood.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any other questions for Mr. Black?  Thank you, sir.  Jethro Owens.

TESTIMONY OF JETHRO OWENS:

MR. OWENS:  My name is Jethro Owens.  I live at 337 Penrose Drive.  And I’m here to oppose this special exception at 338 Penrose Drive.  First of all let me make a correction from the last hearing.  There have been numerous people that have complained to me about this daycare center including Mr. Black.  He doesn’t call directly.  I end up calling.  As a matter of fact, for years we’ve been complaining about this and we got no results and on August 28, 2002, I spoke with Mr. Geo Price regarding 338 Penrose Drive and four other properties that were running daycare centers within close proximity to this address.  And for some reason that wasn’t mentioned at the last meeting.  I also attempted to talk with Mr. Watts about this issue and some other issues because he does run – have his business that he runs out of the yard.  He brings things and stores them in the backyard and we had some complaints about some issues there as well, which it should be in the Record.  Mr. – when I spoke with Mr. Watts on 6-13-03 he abruptly told me and I quote, “I will be at your next homeowners meeting with my lawyer to settle this.”  He turned and walked away.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Excuse me, Mr. Owens, who is Mr. Watts?

MR. OWENS:  Mrs. Lindsay’s husband.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Oh, alright.  Thank you.

MR. OWENS:  Right.  And so that I never got a chance to say anything else because there were several issues that we were concerned about at the property.  Then on June 2nd, now from time to time, most of the time when there are cars there, they do pull in the driveway but there are times when there are cars that prevent them from coming in the driveway and unloading the kids.  Specific example, on June 2, 2005, between 5:43 p.m. and 5:57 p.m. I observed three vehicles from this property.  One pulled partially in the driveway because another beige Malibu was in the driveway and I think - seems like Mr. Watts had his truck in the driveway.  But anyway she pulled partially in the driveway, went in and got her kid, came out and left.  The next vehicle came along, parked on the side of the road, went in, got her kid, came out, placed the kid in the back on the traffic side and left.  Later a van came along and parked on the wrong side of the road, went inside, got her kid and came back and proceeded to leave.  So this doesn’t happen all the time when they load and unload kids in the street but it does happen from time to time.  So in my view - also the traffic.  This house sets right off the corner and you have the school buses and whatever coming along and when people are pulling in and backing out that could create a safety problem in that regard.  So I ask that you deny this request respectfully and this is no offense to Mr. or Mrs. Watts.  It’s just that this is something that the community thinks very, takes a very strong stand on.  Thank you very much.

MS. PERKINS:  I have a question for you, please.

MR. OWENS:  Yes.

MS. PERKINS:  You do have a homeowners association?

MR. OWENS:  Yes.

MS. PERKINS:  And is it your testimony that - I think last month one of the questions I was asking was have you presented this particular kind of problem to the county prior to June and is it your testimony today that you did talk about the day care?

MR. OWENS:  Yes.  

MS. PERKINS:  - prior to June? 

MR. OWENS:  Yes.

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.  Okay.  But there were other concerns that the community had with things that were located in the rear yard?

MR. OWENS:  Yes.

MS. PERKINS:  And so is that taking precedent over the daycare; is that what you’re telling me or?

MR. OWENS:  No.  I don’t think it take - well I’m not sure it takes precedence over it but what it says is that there are problems that could effect what goes on as far as running the daycare as well.

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.  Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Owens, from the tenor of your testimony am I to take you’re one of the officers of the homeowners association?

MR. OWENS:  Yes, I am.  I am president.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

MR. OWENS:  And as I said it’s not just this home.  We get calls – as a matter of fact I have two that I’m working on right now, additional ones that people bring to my attention that I otherwise I wouldn’t even know about.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any additional questions for Mr. Owens?

MR. TOLBERT:  Yes.  Is Mrs. Lindsay a part of the homeowners association?

MR. OWENS:  No.

MR. TOLBERT:  Or is her husband a part of it?

MR. OWENS:  No.  As a matter of fact from time to time I’ve counseled – gave them advice on issues that they had concerns about but they do not pay dues.  They do not attend meetings.  We represent them as anybody else, however, they do not pay dues or attend meetings.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Additional questions for Mr. Owens?  Thank you, sir.  Oh, I’m sorry.

MS. DORSEY:  I just have one.  Mr. Owens let me be clear.  You’re saying that in 2002 you made calls to the county about this specific daycare?

MR. OWENS:  Yes.  And that wasn’t the first time.  As a matter of fact I spoke with my representative about this because we never got any results and he recommended that I do what I did on that day.  Now if I’m not mistaken I believe we may have been down here to a meeting with the attorney, the county attorney at that time.  I believe that’s when I presented this if I’m not mistaken.  I can’t remember for sure.  But I keep notes.  That’s how I went back and checked my notes and I have the dates and the addresses that I reported and when I do - in fact I have so many of them that it’s - you wouldn’t believe.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any other questions for Mr. Owens?  Thank you, sir.  

MR. OWENS:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  George Ashford.

TESTIMONY OF GEORGE ASHFORD:
MR. ASHFORD:  My name is George Ashford and I live in the Meadowlake community.  And I’ve been there for the last 30 years and I register my vote against the daycare center or any business that’s going to be put there in the Meadowlake community because one thing brings on another.  And the next thing we know we’ll have so much we can’t hardly control that.  And the community, a residential community is a residential community and I think we ought to do all in our power to keep it that way for ourselves and for our children.  And we’ve spent a lot of money there to have a community like it ought to be.  But when we [inaudible] it and contaminate it with a whole lot of things that we should not have then we’re asking for problems and trouble.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Questions for Mr. Ashford?  Alright.  Thank you, sir.

MR. ASHFORD:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Willie Richardson.  

TESTIMONY OF WILLIE RICHARDSON:

MR. RICHARDSON:  My name is Willie Richardson.  I live at 212 Cordova Drive.  I’ve lived in Columbia area here for some 30 years and when I moved to the Meadowlake subdivision, I moved there because it was a good neighborhood, residential neighborhood, good people, people highly respected, the community is highly respected and I oppose starting any business in the residential area.  That is not what we want in our area.  Once you allow one business to come, then you’re going to have another one and another one.  Don’t bend the rules, don’t bend the community.  You do bend the rules then you bending the community.  So we’re a proud community and we get along good with all of the neighbors.  The only thing we do not want is the business in the community.  We just want good neighbors.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any questions for Mr. Richardson?  Alright.  Thank you, sir.  The last person I have signed up is Willie Joe Redmon.  

TESTIMONY OF WILLIE JOE REDMON:
MR. REDMON:  My name is Willie Joe Redmon, 404 El Dorado Court.  I have lived in Meadowlake subdivision for 32 years.  When I moved to Meadowlake by it being a residential neighborhood, no business was allowed.  No car repairs, no barbershops, no beauty shops.  Any time we bend the rules we’re going to cause problems and we don’t need that.  I don’t think we go to other neighborhoods and do this so that’s the reason I’m against it 100%.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Questions for Mr. Redmon?  Alright.  Thank you, sir.  Ms. Lindsay, you have an opportunity to rebut the testimony that you’ve heard here this afternoon.  

MS. LINDSAY:  Well I just have to say that no traffic jam has been – you know, one thing about it for 10 years I’ve operated this place.  No one ever said anything about it because it had to be under control because no one ever said anything.  Ten years I’ve had this and they did not know, they didn’t, you know, if they wouldn’t have found out it would have been nothing.  And as far as traffic, there’s no traffic there and my children they hardly ever come all packed up, you know.  And they said a business, we got a business when you walk right in Meadowlake there’s a big business there coming in there.  That’s a big business.  When you get right in Meadowlake there’s a big business coming there.  And I just don’t see where my little daycare’s doing anything to anybody.  Neighbors – people next side never had to say anything about my business.  The children, you never hear them.  And as far as being safe, they don’t be piled up out there like they were saying.  They’re not piled up and they come – I may have one come 7:00, 8:00 or 9:00 or something like that.  They’re never piled up as they stated it was.  

MS. DORSEY:  Mrs. Lindsay, have you requested parents to not unload from the street?

MS. LINDSAY:  No.  And they don’t unload from the street.  They usually come in my driveway.  

MS. DORSEY:  Is that usually or always?

MS. LINDSAY:  Most always, yes.  I don’t have them to come out, you know, on the street.  I don’t have a big business.  Just a small amount of children.  

MS. DORSEY:  Have you had an understanding and an awareness that people are not supposed to unload from the street?

MS. LINDSAY:  Yeah.  I mean, I can’t even remember someone unloading from the street.  They always come in the yard.  And like I said, I don’t have that many children and it’s never piled up like they all come at one time.  

MS. PERKINS:  So you can say with a great amount of certainly that the entire time that you’ve been in business – the ten years, that no one has parked on the street because there was a gentleman testifying to that and unloading -

MS. ARY LINDSAY:  Yeah.  Nobody parks on the street.

MS. PERKINS:  No.  I’m asking you.  You can say with certainty.  You’re disputing his testimony?

MS. LINDSAY:  Yes.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Ms. Lindsay, at any point during the 10 years that you state you’ve been running business were you contacted by any representative of the homeowners association?

MS. LINDSAY:  No.  No.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Do you understand that –

MS. LINDSAY:  Not about the daycare, no.  Not about the daycare, no.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Were you contacted about other things?

MS. LINDSAY:  Oh, yeah.  There was always something going on.  Your yard is not clean enough or this or that.  And it was always something that they was after us about, you know, backyard because my husband keeps a lot of tools and stuff back there, which we cleared up everything.  There’s nothing back there now.  

MS. PERKINS:  So how often was there a call about this and that?

MS. LINDSAY:  Well –

MS. PERKINS:  And was the call from the county or was it from your neighbors?

MS. LINDSAY:  A neighbor, neighbor.  Never the county, the neighbor.  

MS. PERKINS:  So the county has not visited your residence for this and that.

MS. LINDSAY:  After the complaint, yes they did come and told us that he had to get this cleaned up or whatever, yes.  

MS. PERKINS:  So just that once the county came out?

MS. LINDSAY:  Yeah.  As I can recall, yes.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Do you understand Ms. Lindsay that in the event the Board should approve your request that it will be imperative that these children be loaded and unloaded off of the street?

MS. LINDSAY:  Yes.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  That would be a condition of your operation of your day care? 

MS. LINDSAY:  Yes.  Anything that I’m told to do I try to correct it.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any additional questions for Ms. Lindsay?  Alright.  Thank you, ma’am.

MS. LINDSAY:  Okay.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  That concludes the testimony on this case.  Entertain discussion among the Board.

MR. BRANCH:  Are there currently any businesses that this Board has approved in Meadowlake?  Any daycares, any types of businesses.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Price, you might want to address that.

MR. PRICE:  Just off the top of my head I’m aware of two special exceptions for daycares have been approved by the Board.  

MS. DORSEY:  I’m sorry?

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  In Meadowlake?

MR. PRICE:  In Meadowlake, yes.

MR. BRANHAM:  Mr. Price, can you recollect back in 2002 that you were contacted about this particular residence?

MR. PRICE:  No, sir.  I can’t.  I’m not disputing Mr. Owens but, of course, you know, we get a lot of complaints and I don’t specifically remember this one and if I had we may have discussed them with Mike.  We may have gotten that complaint.  Of course, one of our former code enforcement officers may have gone out there so it’s kind of hard for me to tell what happened when he went.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Other discussion by Board members?

MS. DORSEY:  I just - This comes up a lot about businesses in neighborhoods and I hope that – we’re bound by the code, the code itself and I don’t think the public understands that the code allows businesses, home-based businesses in neighborhoods.  It’s not up to us to dispute that.  It’s up to us to judge whether that special business request meets the requirements that the code has set forth and that’s a judgment call that we are, you know, we have the responsibility of.  So I hear the frustration of the residents in this neighborhood but that is part of your county’s code that is allowed and we start with does this request meet these requirements.  This case has been very complicated but it’s brought up a lot of these issues.

MS. PERKINS:  Ms. Dorsey.  I have to kind of piggyback on what you usually say about looking at the relevance of, you know, what the – what the intent of it was and, you know, I’ve heard I think last month I heard some, you know, testimony from county members that they’ve had to go out, not – I’m trying to figure out – you’re right.  They’re entitled to home occupations but then is it such that it is not distracting to your neighbors.  

MS. DORSEY:  Yes.

MS. PERKINS:  And what keeps repeating here to me is the county has been called to clear up various problems of debris in the backyard or, you know, those kinds of things and also thinking about the applicant’s testimony is, you know, saying she does not know what’s back there, who did this, or who did what.  So I’m not quite sure that the safety of the children is being taken into consideration especially when you’re living in a home and you’re uncertain about what is going on in your own backyard.  [inaudible] last week.

MR. TOLBERT:  Mr. Chairman, I have a little bit of a problem understanding.  This case was presented before and there’s new evidence that needs to be presented to offset what was said from the first time.  The only thing I see here today is that they’ve cleaned up some of the problems that were there but I haven’t seen any new evidence.

MS. DORSEY:  I’ve been wondering about that myself but it seems like, you know, in asking for the reconsideration at that point we say yes we accept that you’ve presented the evidence, new evidence required or not required to hear the reconsideration.  At the case itself is it again required of the applicant or do we – is it as if we’re hearing the case fresh?

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I think that’s a threshold question.  At the time that the reconsideration is considered by the Board is when the new evidence has to be presented and if the Board votes to rehear the case then a majority at least of the Board members are satisfied that the new evidence has been presented or there couldn’t be a reconsideration.

MS. DORSEY:  That’s, that’s how I understood it.   That’s what I thought. And, you know, hear anything that we might not have heard before, of course, but look at it freshly.  

MS. PERKINS:  But there has been some rebuttal of what was presented –

MS. DORSEY:  Absolutely.  

MS. PERKINS:  - for me.  For me there has been some rebuttal to what was, you know, what was presented.  So I’m questioning that with the evidence that was presented for the reconsideration.

MS. DORSEY:  Okay.  This is the way I’m looking at it.  Okay?  The county allows for daycares, number one.  This business has been in business for 10 years.  There’s been a dispute of whether it’s been called about.  The first time we hear about it is when other conditions in the yard are complained about.  The county does respond.  The other conditions call for a citation.  At that time it is discovered that this business, this home occupation doesn’t have the zoning requirement.  So we hear the case and cite safety concerns even beyond what’s there because of the husband.  We cite concerns based on what’s required of daycare centers.  The next – we grant a reconsideration based on, you know, that we consider that she is providing new evidence that any problems have been addressed that we had concerns about.  Then we come to today and we’re looking this case; we’re looking at this yard and does this case merit a special exception.  Does this request merit a special exception that [inaudible]?  The only dispute I can hear, I’m hearing is the issue of the children being dropped off from the street.  I can’t dispute that the county allows daycares.  The only issue there is it affecting the neighborhood, the character of the neighborhood to such an extent.  But I’ve already heard 10 years and, you know, people in the neighborhood haven’t known it’s been going on.  Other special exceptions for daycares have been granted and so getting back to this case, the only issue I’m having now is can I trust Ms. Lindsay – where’s Ms. – oh – can I trust Ms. Lindsay to be a good enough daycare provider to never allow a drop off of children from the street because that’s an incredible no-no and that the conditions of the yard are met so that it provides for the utmost of safety for the children.  

MS. PERKINS:  And I would agree with what you said up to the point that there was a lot of uncertainty as to whether this was presented to the county because of the other issues about the debris in the yard.  So if we’re going to look – if we’re going to go back and you bring this forward then I think it is imperative that, you know, you have to look at the whole picture.  And her testimony, as I remember, was that she didn’t know about the debris and that was –

MS. DORSEY:  I don’t recall that.

MS. PERKINS:  I think she stated that that was her husband’s business.  There was a lock on the gate and that’s how I guess the county became real aware of that.  So I’m having some questions.

MS. DORSEY:  I would suggest that –

MS. PERKINS:  Geo wants to interject something.

MR. PRICE:  Well I just want to point out that as far as the parking whether it is done in the right-of-way or parking in the driveway, during the time that Ms. Lindsay was running the operation – kind of go back – she was operating under DSS’s approval and I think we discussed at the last meeting in June that DSS did not require county approval during that time when she first started.  So I’m not making any excuses for her but usually when we get into the where you can park, excuse me, load and unload the children, that’s usually something that is stipulated by the Board through the county code and so I think it’s safe to say that she may not have known that that is a requirement because she did not go before the Board.

MS. DORSEY:  Okay.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I’ve never made it a secret that I’m not a great fan of daycares in residential neighborhoods but it becomes a little more difficult when you’ve had one operating in the neighborhood for 10 years and many of the residents weren’t even aware of its existence much less had there been any problems apparently reported until at least 2002 when Mr. Owens said that he made a complaint to the county.  But other residents were completely unaware of the existence of it and to hear testimony at this point that this is going to have an adverse impact on the neighborhood when that impact hasn’t been apparent for the past 10 years makes it a little more difficult it seems to me.  

MR. BRANHAM:  I totally agree with it, Mr. Chairman, and that was going to be my remarks too.  I don’t make it a secret that I don’t normally approve of those either but when you operate a business for 10 years and some folks don’t even know you’re there I think that leaves something to be said about the applicant.  She’s operated a facility without trouble, without injury or cause of whatever.  And even though the Board did not request her at our first meeting to go back and clean up her act so to speak and come back for a rehearing, she took it upon herself to do those things and ask for a rehearing.  That was not a request made by the Board.  That was something that she took upon herself.  Those were concerns of ours but it wasn’t a request of ours.  

MS. DORSEY:  I think the Board’s concerns over the yard and the safety of the children are totally legitimate and if this were approved I think it would be important to make it a consideration or a condition, I’m sorry, that that yard be maintained to the all the requirements of the county and any requirements of DSS.  That any type of citation would void this special exception but I think that that’s been a legitimate concern and if there was a motion made to – for this that that should be a condition along with –

MS. PERKINS:  But how could you place a condition on something that can’t happen.  I did hear – Geo you correct me that they don’t come out and do – DSS doesn’t come out and do an inspection or are you aware.

MS. DORSEY:  But the county does.

MR. PRICE:  Correct.

MS. DORSEY: And if -

MS. PERKINS:  Oh, okay, you’re talking about - 

MS. DORSEY: Sorry.  I’m sorry.

MR. PRICE:  No I was agreeing with Ms. Perkins.

MS. DORSEY:  Well the county does.

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.  I thought you said DSS.

MS. DORSEY:  If there was such concern over the safety of the children that DSS was called I imagine they would come out.  

MR. PRICE:  Yes.

MS. PERKINS:  You know, I have a concern because I think last month, you know, in hearing this I was trying to get from the community how could someone operate a daycare for 10 years and you not know.  And what I heard, and I want y’all to help me, is it seems that this particular resident had many issues.  It appeared to me that it had many issues and it was kind of by the way and until something was acted upon from the county and someone went in, saw these children in the house and then informed the people that they needed to do that.  I have a problem with, and I still have a problem with the clean up.  It doesn’t look that desirable to me for children to participate in.  So - and I have a problem with trustworthiness on the part – if they’ve called numerous times to get certain other issues cleaned up.  And I’m going to say that and I’m going to be quiet because we’ve been on this enough.

MR. PRICE:  Ms. Perkins.  Just to get some clarification.  Once again I did not dispute whether Mr. Owens –

MS. PERKINS:  I did hear you say that.

MR. PRICE:  - through the Meadowlakes association did report it but just talking to Officer Spearman just now, let’s just say going from that 2002 point up until now when he was the only code enforcement officer on Staff, the April when he first went out there was the only time between that 2002 mark and up to this time that he was notified to come out for this condition.  So it hasn’t been something necessarily over the last three years that has come to the attention of the county.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any additional discussion?  If not, the chair will entertain a motion.

MS. DORSEY:  Mr. Chair, I’d like to make a motion that Case No. 05-75 for special exception be approved with the conditions that number one, vacancy, abandonment or discontinuance for any 12 month period as verified by a business license will void the special exception.  Condition number two that as our requirements state anyway that any proven loading or unloading on, off or on the street will void the special exception.  Any citation by DSS or the county – I’m sorry.

MR. PRICE:  If you could just limit that to the county instead of DSS.

MS. DORSEY:  To the county, I’m sorry.  Any citation by the county on this home, whether it be for the day care or for the condition of the yard, will void the special exception and that no signs be allowed in the yard.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is there a second?

MR. PRICE:  Ms. Dorsey?

MS. DORSEY:  I’m sorry.

MR. PRICE:  In talking to Officer Spearman again.  We’d like some clarification –

MS. DORSEY:  Okay.

MR. PRICE:  - when you mean citation.  Is it where we get a complaint or just issue a notice of violation or is it a summons that is issued?

MS. DORSEY:  It is a recognized violation by the county and basically that he receives a citation.  It’s proven by the county that he has done –

MR. PRICE:  A notice of violation or a summons because we normally send out a notice of violation and give them a certain number of days to clean up the violation.

MS. DORSEY:  Okay. 

MR. PRICE:  And if they do not do it in that amount of time we will then issue a summons.

MS. DORSEY:  Well because this has been an issue I’d have to – when you send out a notice of violation.  You’ve gone out and you’ve recognized that there is a problem that needs to be cleaned up well I’ll go with notice of violation or notice of citation, I’m sorry.  I’ll clarify it to that.  If there is a call and you are required to go out and issue any type of – you’ve recognized that there’s a problem then that’s too much of a problem for me at this point.  So that – I’m trying to pin it on this applicant if this passes that they’re on notice you’ve got to keep up this yard; that there cannot be another complaint that’s recognized by the county as being valid.  

MR. FARRAR:  I’ve got to point out that that’s going to be very problematic.

MS. DORSEY:  I’m sorry.

MR. FARRAR:  That’s going to be very problematic to enforce and if, for example, she’s issued a citation, goes to court and is found not guilty, what are you going to do?  I mean she’s been issued a citation.  That’s troublesome.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  You might want to change it if there’s any conviction –

MS. DORSEY:  Okay.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  - for violation of the zoning ordinance it would void the business license.

MR. FARRAR:  There again, I mean the remedy for that is there are other things that you can do to, you know, enjoin that operation.  I mean you’re basically, you know, giving her a one strike and you’re out rule.  It’s not even a three-strike rule and you’re talking about a magistrate summons there is no enhanced penalty for zoning violation.  I just – I would caution you against attaching that type of condition because that’s got some problems.  We can talk about it in Executive Session if you want.

MS. DORSEY:  I do.

MS. PERKINS:  Yes.

MS. DORSEY:  Please.  I’d like to make a motion that we adjoin into Executive Session.

MS. PERKINS:  Second.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  You’ve seconded?  It’s been moved and seconded that we go into executive session.  All in favor?  Please excuse us.  

[Approved:  Branch, Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young]

[Executive Session]
MR. TOLBERT:  So moved.

MR. BRANCH:  Second.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded to go back into open session.  All in favor indicate by raising their hand.  

[Approved:  Branch, Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young]


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.

MS. DORSEY:  Mr. Chairman, I’d like to restate my motion.  I’d like to move that special exception 05-75 be approved on the conditions: number one vacancy, abandonment or discontinuance for any 12 month period as verified by a business license will void the special exception; number two that all equipment be maintained from the yard, be maintained behind enclosures and locked at all times; number three that there be no signage in the yard referring to a daycare center; and number four that all loading and unloading be done off street.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Price, did you have something you wanted to interject?

MR. PRICE:  Yes, I believe – Mr. Owens?  Mr. Owens.  Did you have something?  Mr. Owens wanted to present something to the Board in addition.  It’s up to you, of course, if you would like to receive that information.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Well Mr. Owens had his opportunity to testify.  I’ll leave it up to the Board whether they want to take the extraordinary step of allowing him to come back and testify further or present matters to the Board.  Is there a motion to allow Mr. Owens to come forward and testify further?  

MS. DORSEY:  I’ll move that we allow Mr. Owens.  I don’t want to leave any evidence or truth unconsidered in this case.

MR. TOLBERT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded to permit Mr. Owens to present additional matter.  All those in favor indicate by raising their hand.  

[Approved:  Branch, Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young]

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Mr. Owens?

MR. OWENS:  Well the only thing that I would like to enter is I was provided with some information by one of my members today from the Fire Department where there has been numerous false alarms for the fire department to report at that property.


CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Owens, do you have any evidence of that to bring us?

MR. OWENS:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Okay.  Could we have it, please?

MR. OWENS:  Sure.

MS. PERKINS:  You can bring it up.  Bring it up.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Ms. Lindsay, I’ll give you an opportunity to rebut this.  Mr. Owens has presented – I’ll give it to you in a moment as soon as the Board has an opportunity to look at it – there’s a statement from – who’s that from Emergency Services?  Memorandum from Division Manager for Fire and Enforcement indicating that between 2000 and 2005 there were 10 call responses from the Fire Department to your address.  Now in all fairness it indicates that one, two, three of them were system malfunctions.  The others were either unintentional – were predominantly unintentional false alarms.  

MS. LINDSAY:  What usually happens there, when my alarm goes off they usually call me and ask me is everything okay.  But lately they hadn’t come out.  What happens when I’m cooking or something immediately my alarm goes off.  If there’s a little bit of smoke it’ll go off always.  And usually they will call me but, you know, I asked them why didn’t, you know, call me whenever before they come out but they just come out anyway and, you know.

MS. DORSEY:  What kind of an alarm?

MS. LINDSAY:  It’s the smoke alarm.  Any time I put – if I cook something, you know, or if a little bit of smoke come up it will automatically go off  –

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is it part of your -

MS. LINDSAY:  It’s always done that.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  security system?  Is that –

MS. LINDSAY:  Huh?

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is it part of a home security system?

MS. LINDSAY:  Yes.  Yes.  And usually they would call me and ask me if everything’s okay but lately they did not call and when they come out I say, “Y’all should have called me.  I could have stopped you from coming.”  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any additional questions?  Alright.  Thank you.  I’m not sure of the relevance of that but - alright.  There is a motion on the floor to approve this requested special exception with the conditions as stated.  Is there a second?  

MR. BRANCH:  Second.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded to approve it with the conditions that any discontinuance for a 12 month period would void the special exception, that there be no signage, that all equipment pertaining to Mr. Watts’ business be maintained within an enclosed area in the back yard and that all loading and unloading of children be conducted off the public right-of-way.  All in favor of that motion please signify by raising your hand.  

[Approved:  Branch, Branham, Dorsey, Brown; Opposed: Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young]

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It has been approved by a vote of four to two.  Am I right?  Yeah.  Four to two.  Ms. Lindsay, your special exception has been approved.  The Zoning Administrator will be in touch with you.  Mr. Price, next case, please.

MR. FARRAR:  Did you ask who was opposed?  We didn’t catch it if you asked who was opposed.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I did. 

MS. PERKINS:  No.  You didn’t.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I didn’t?  I’m sorry.  

MS. PERKINS:  That’s okay.

MR. TOLBERT:  That’s okay.

MR. FARRAR:  I Just want to make sure they weren’t abstaining.  I mean –

MS. PERKINS:   No.  We weren’t abstaining.

MR. TOLBERT:  No.  No abstains.

MS. PERKINS:  I wasn’t.

MR. TOLBERT:  I  wasn’t abstaining.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Thank you, Brad.  

MR. PRICE:  We’ll have a two minute break until Mr. Branch returns.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Until who returns?

MR. PRICE:  Mr. Branch.

MS. DORSEY:  Branch.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Oh.

MR. BRANHAM:  I think he parked up the street and had to go feed his meter.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Oh.  

CASE 05-85 SE:
MR. PRICE:  The next item is Item C.  Okay.  Case 05-85 Special Exception.  The applicant is Debra Hopfensperger.  The applicant is requesting the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant a special exception to permit an establishment of a family daycare on property zoned RS-1.  The location is 402 West Ashford Way.  The parcel is about, you know, a little more than an acre.  The subject property has an existing single-family residential structure, an extended double driveway leads to a garage.  A fence does not enclose the rear of the property.  The applicant proposes to establish a family daycare for a maximum of six children.  The ages of the children would range from two to five years of age.  The proposed hours of operation are 7:15 to 5:30 pm.  This property is located in the Ashford subdivision.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  The first person I have signed up in favor of this is John Hopfensperger.  Are you going to let your wife bear the brunt of this or –

TESTIMONY OF DEBRA HOPFENSPERGER:

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  I’m Debbie Hopfensperger of 402 West Ashford Way and I’m here requesting a special exemption to open a home daycare at my home.  We’ve only been in this home since mid-June.  I have been a resident of the Ashford community though for nine years; it’ll be 10 years in May.  I previously lived down the street just a tenth of a mile at 314.  I did have an existing daycare at 314.  I was in violation and Mr. Spearman came out in November.  I shut down my operations and have not been in business since.  I’m requesting now, because I am able to meet the zoning requirements, I’ve allowed for - the driveway is 100’ driveway from the street.  There’s 100’ that go from the curb to the garage doors, a three-car garage.  I feel there’s ample turnaround space.  There’s a pad out in the front for people to turn around.  The same way by the garage doors.  There’s plenty of room so no one ever has to back out or, you know, I propose the children – they drive up to the garage and are let out.  Since that picture was taken we have sodded the yard.  The back yard will be done this weekend.  I fully intend to put in a fence and do anything else that the Council sees that I need to do.  I have had opposition.  My two neighbors across the street are not in favor of this.  In fact they complained about it before I even lived at this home.  When I lived at 314 and had the daycare, in the nine years I never had a complaint.  I in fact have letters from my existing neighbors there that I was never a nuisance, never a problem to anybody.  The Ashford homeowners’ association bylaws do state that in order to have a business in the community you have to have their approval.  In March I wrote them a letter and asked for that approval.  I was denied.  I appealed it to the Board because I felt that I, number one they hadn’t voted correctly and number two, I was being discriminated.  The Ashford community has numerous businesses, landscaping business, electric business. There is two existing registered daycares, one within a two-mile radius of me that have been – that was just approved by the Council last October.  The other one has been in existence for probably 10 years.  And there are other ladies that are existing that are in violation I’m sure.  But, you know, I come now.  I truly - this is, it’s dear to my heart.  I love the children.  I feel I add a real service to the community.  There’s been controversy over that I’m depreciating the neighborhood by doing this but I feel like I’ve built a home that has done nothing but help the community.  And I just hope that you’ll consider my special exemption and allow me to do what I feel is truly my – taking care of children and doing what I do best.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mrs. Hopfensperger, I notice that your hours of operation are going to be from 7:15 in the morning to 5:30 in the evening.  How many days a week is that?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Monday through Friday.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Other questions for the applicant?

MS. PERKINS:  Did I hear you correctly?  You were operating – you had been operating at another location within the same subdivision for 10 years? 

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Yes, ma’am.

MS. PERKINS:  For nine years?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Right.  Right.  My previous – my home is a tenth of a mile from where this home was located.  And the homeowners’ association was very aware that I existed but their theory is that unless someone complains they don’t – will not do anything.  When I went before – I requested the ACC for approval.  They turned me down.  I appealed it to the board.  Then the board in return has, you know, said that I can’t do this.

MS. PERKINS:  At the new home?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  At the new home; correct.

MS. PERKINS:  But at the old home you were operating in existence for nine years?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Correct.

MS. PERKINS:  Was there opposition then?  I didn’t mean to cut you off.  I’m –

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  No.  No.

MS. PERKINS:  - just trying.

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Not until November of 2004 when someone issued a complaint to the Ombudsmen board and in turn the zoning and so forth came out and at that time – years ago back in 1997 I came before this Council.  I was approved by DSS but I couldn’t meet the driveway.  I had no way.  My property did not allow that and I was in violation.  I know I was but I was doing after school care and I thought watching children less than four hours a day I was okay.  But I found out since then that that was not correct.  

MS. PERKINS:  Now tell me again and maybe – the board approved you to operate a day care with a condition –

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  My homeowner –

MS. PERKINS:  -- that you have loading and unloading.  You provide some –

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Back in ’97, yes. 

MS. PERKINS:  My memory’s bad, honey.

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  That’s okay.  Back in 1997, yes.  There was – there were conditions for, that you couldn’t back out of the driveway and so forth and I couldn’t meet those conditions.

MS. PERKINS:  But you operated in violation of?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Well, I did after school care thinking that it was less than four hours a day, I was okay doing that but I couldn’t keep children full time.  

MS. PERKINS:  And that was in ’97 and you didn’t hear from the Zoning Department until November of last year?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  2004, yes.

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.  Thank you.  

MS. DORSEY:  Was it pertaining to you – what was the violation about?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Well, I wasn’t registered with DSS.  Then I didn’t meet zoning.

MS. DORSEY:  This was at your old residence?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  At the old residence.

MS. DORSEY:  [inaudible]

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  This was all --

MS. DORSEY:  I’m sorry.  I don’t mean to interrupt.  

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Okay.  No.

MS. DORSEY:  The complaint was about your keeping the children after school –

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Right.

MS. DORSEY:  - at your old residence?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Right.

MS. DORSEY:  So you received a complaint then and you –

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  I shut down the next day.  The lady from – yeah.

MS. DORSEY:  Okay.  Okay.  

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  And I haven’t had a –

MS. DORSEY:  And you haven’t started again?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  - day care in my house.  No.  No, ma’am.

MS. DORSEY:  This is your first request –

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Yes.

MS. DORSEY:  - to start up again?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Yes.

MS. DORSEY:  Okay.

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  And I feel I’ve made all the – the driveway especially – we went to great stakes to make that driveway so that – because my husband’s a builder and we built that house ourself and it’s been a long process.  I couldn’t, you know, I couldn’t get approved at the other house because I knew I was moving and that we were having this new home.  

MS. DORSEY:  That was the issue before so you already knew.

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Right.  Right.  And I’m very willing to put the fence in and do whatever recommendations.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any additional questions for the applicant?


MR. TOLBERT:  Yeah.  Just one.  I see that you have a deck on the back.  Are the kids going to be up or down on that?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  No.  They won’t be on the deck.  That house is three stories.  I have a basement with walk out sliding glass doors to the patio to go out to the area where it will be fenced for the children.  In the basement I have a play area and we will be in the basement or on the middle floor of the home. 

MR. TOLBERT:  Would it be – I mean, it would need to be some protection for that child two, five year old run up and down stairs.

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Okay.

MR. TOLBERT:  You need some kind of gate to keep them from –

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Okay.

MR. TOLBERT:  - either going in that direction.

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  I believe my husband would know better.  The way he’s proposed the fence.  I think it protects from those steps anyway.  The gate – how that would work.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Anything further?

MR. BRANHAM:  I’ve just got a concern, Mr. Brown, if I may address with the applicant.  Based on some information we have and what you just told us that you were turned down by the homeowners association –

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Yes.

MR. BRANHAM:  - for that request and we certainly have no jurisdiction with the homeowners association but suppose, just suppose the Board approved your request today, how would you handle that with the homeowners association?  You’ve already been denied that request.

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Well in the letter it does state also though that the ACC was to meet again to reconsider my request and as far as I know they haven’t.  I’m not aware of that.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Anything further?  Alright.  Thank you, ma’am.  There are some people signed up in opposition and you’ll have an opportunity rebut any testimony from that.  Mr. Hopfensperger, did you want to add anything to what your wife stated?  Okay.  First person I have signed up in opposition is William McVetta(?).

TESTIMONY OF WILLIAM MCVETTA:

MR. MCVETTA:  My name is William McVetta.  I live at 15 Grafton Court in Irmo.  Can you hear me now?  

MR. BRANCH:  Yeah.

MR. MCVETTA):  My property is on the corner of Grafton Court and West Ashford Way.  I’m one of the neighbors that she mentioned that entered opposition when they came before the homeowners’ association.  My primary concerns are the possibility of noise and change in the character of the neighborhood by permitting a home day care center to be established there.  I also have some special problems with the traffic situation.  I got – I can explain that and then if I still have time I have a couple of photographs that illustrate what my problem is.  West Ashford Way is a residential street that is one of the exits or the two exits from Ashford Hall.  Many people have to use it.  The Hopfensperger’s driveway is just over the crest of the hill.  It was described as a double driveway but actually you wouldn’t want to drive two cars down it at the same time.  Anybody coming in or going out would just go down the center of it.  If other cars have to wait in the street to enter the driveway because it is occupied then thru traffic would be diverted into the middle of the street right at a blind spot.  In addition just over the other crest of the hill there’s Grafton and Adair Courts.  From 6:30 to 9:00 a.m., school buses traveling in both directions load children waiting on two courts.  I think the children are from all over the neighborhood.  They come to the courts because they can get picked up by the school buses and not be standing on West Ashford Way.  The Hopfensperger’s clients would be added to the traffic during the morning and evening commuting periods so their impact would be heightened.  I have the two pictures that illustrate the blind spot if I can show them and point out what they mean.  I thought they could be put up on a screen. 

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  No, sir.  We don’t have the capability to do that.

MR. MCVETTA:  Oh.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  If you want to speak to those photos I think the Board has had a chance to see them now.  If you hold them up and indicate what it is very briefly we’ll be glad to listen.  

MR. MCVETTA:  The first photo is taken from the crest of the hill down to the intersection with West Shady Grove Road and by my car odometer, that’s about a little less than a tenth of a mile.  You can see a mailbox on the right.  That’s the Hopfensperger’s driveway.  It’s above the mailbox.  You can see that there’s a blind spot just beyond or another crest and a dip just beyond that.  That shows the driveway.  I think that pretty well shows that only one car at a time would comfortably fit into it.  The second photograph is a picture taken from the low point showing the crest of the hill the other way.  The Hopfensperger’s driveway and mailbox are on the left in this photograph and it shows how close it is to the crest of the hill.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Thank you, sir.  Questions for Mr. McVetta?

MR. TOLBERT:  Yes.  How do you feel with - you’re going to have – what you’re talking about six people - the impact of six cars will make that much of an impact in a community when, for instance, if you have a bridge party and you have 10 people over to your house and they come out, what would significantly impact the same street given at any time?

MR. MCVETTA:  The problem with six people is that they would come during the commuting hours when there is already substantial traffic on the road including the school buses.  

MS. PERKINS:  So did you know she operated a day care nine years ago?

MR. MCVETTA:  I don’t know if I was aware of it before I heard she’d been shut down there.  Previous residence is about 200 yards or more away from mine and we can’t even see it from our house so.

MS. PERKINS:  You’re pretty active in your community?

MR. MCVETTA:  No.  I am not.  

MS. PERKINS:  No.  The community as a whole; is it pretty active?  Does it have organizations that, you know, talk about what’s in the covenants?

MR. MCVETTA:  Well they have the homeowners’ association.

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.  Are you a part of that?

MR. MCVETTA:  No.  I’m not.  I have to be a member of it but I don’t participate in it.  

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any additional questions?  Alright.  Thank you, sir.  Margaret McVetta.

MR. MCVETTA:  I signed her up by mistake.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Okay.  Robert Kroom.

MR. KROOM:  I’m Robert Kroom, 3 Cavendish Court in Ashford Hall.  As I understand the code, they have the burden of proof to show meeting the fence and the turnaround but after that point the burden shifts to anybody who’s opposed to point out the traffic impacts, vehicle/pedestrian safety and after that, they have to rebut it.  It’s not an entitlement once you satisfy the first section of that code.  It’s conditional.  That’s a threshold issue and then you have to come back and consider at that point.  That would be my understanding of the code and you’re particular decision-making the way it flip flops back and forth.  Mrs. Hopfensperger is correct in that you did grant a special exception down on Queen Oak Court.  However, it is yet to open and operate.  They have also yet to open, to request approval to operate the homeowners’ association architectural patrol committee in particular.  So to my knowledge it has not yet opened although you granted the zoning authority to do it.  There is a loop.  West Ashford is a loop that runs from West Shady Grove to Hollingshed Creek Boulevard and straight on out to West Shady Grove.  That particular stretch of West Shady Grove is where Rolling Creek and now Chelsea Park are being built.  Out the back way towards the Hopfenspergers is the way out to the Dutch Fork Middle and Dutch Fork High School and that’s where the folks that are driving to the high school and the middle school, that’s the end they would generally take out of from the Ashford Hall side of the neighborhood.  The six cars in the morning would indeed cause additional traffic at that particular stop sign.  From your earlier decision there’s another six trips from the other direction.  And frankly the fellow that lives across the street from the one you granted earlier was told that without a turnaround in the driveway it wouldn’t be granted so then nobody showed up.  There were several people that called.  That particular one is a cul-de-sac with an island in the middle and it’s one lane all the way around and the driveway barely fits their cars outside the garage so I would submit to you that was inappropriately granted.  They didn’t meet the threshold of the ordinance there to begin with.  The other issue that’s not been brought up is West Ashford Way is coming up in sheets.  There’s shale under the road.  There’s about a 30 yard long stretch where one and a half lanes is just crumbling up.  Most of the kids don’t like riding their bikes across it and any additional traffic is just going to exacerbate the problem.  We have this issue in several spots along West Ashford Way.  I don’t know where we are on the pecking order.  We’ve fussed and fussed and complained and begged to the extent we can and there’s just not money to repave it yet.  We were told we were on the repaving list at one point but haven’t made it down that far yet.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mr. Kroom, I’m sorry.  I’m going to have to cut you off here.  Your time -

MR. KROOM:  Okay.  I have an outline here of the written comments but the homeowners’ association when it was taken back from the Board the stipulation was that they were to come back and it’s in your packet from the homeowners’ association letter.  They said that they would come back with the consent of the two people on the block and they’ve never brought it back to ACC to consider.  So the ball’s really in their court at this point.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Thank you, sir.  Any questions for Mr. Kroom?  Next is Benjamin Zabrinski.

TESTIMONY OF BENJAMIN ZABRINSKI:
MR. ZABRINSKI:  Good afternoon.  I’m Benjamin Zabrinski.  I live at 17 Glen Hawk Loop in the subdivision.  I am the architectural control chair person for the community.  My committee represents the board in reviewing changes to the community, mainly architectural but we also have the authority to review any new businesses that are coming into the community.  We have, as was told by Mrs. Hopfensperger, that back in March we received a request from them and our committee spent more time on that request than anyone that we’ve done in three years since I’ve been with them.  We did a lot of research, interviewed people, talked to people on the phone and had people come to our meetings two times and I’d say we really did our homework on this and let me explain.  When we look at something we look at the impact of the change on the whole community and then we focus on the impact of the change on the immediate area of the community.  Overall before we consider the neighbors we were not favorable to having a business come in.  Even though they were - here the situation has changed and they are requesting our approval which was different than they did before.  They was operating without our approval.  As a matter of fact, I’m not sure but I believe when they started their business some 10 years ago there was no ACC.  It was under the builder’s jurisdiction.  So the ACC came about since then.  Once we considered the neighbors which is the which is the immediate situation we’re looking at, both neighbors – well two out of three of the neighbors at least - objected strongly to it and we heard their considerations.  You also heard a little bit from Mr. McVetta, one of their neighbors, and Mr. Spear is not here.  A third neighbor was neutral but when we considered the neighbors’ situation we had to deny it and at this point it’s denied and Mr. Hopfensperger and I have talked before and there was some consideration that he was going to get the two neighbors that are in opposition to come back and sign another request.  That has never happened so right now the situation is with the community that if you approve it the community would not approve it and they would be operating in violation of our covenants if it’s approved.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Well I think it’s important that you understand that the covenants don’t rise to the level of an ordinance and this Board cannot enforce those nor are they an appropriate consideration.  That’s a separate issue that would have to be addressed by the homeowners’ association.

MR. ZABRINSKI:  Right.  I’m aware of that, sir.  I just want to make you aware of the community’s position.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I understand.  Any questions for Mr. Zabrinski?

MR. BRANCH:  So there aren’t any other businesses operating in that community?

MR. ZABRINKSI:  There are.  The situation is if somebody complains about the business we’re going to do something about it.  Now if you have an invisible business somebody’s doing a telephone business in their house, nobody knows it’s there then there’s no question.  It’s not a problem.  The problem in this situation we’re reviewing right now if they go into business we know their two neighbors across the street that are going to complain real quick and that’s again that’s a community problem.  I understand that, but to answer your question.  

MS. DORSEY: Are there other day cares in the community that are operating –

MR. ZABRINSKI:  I believe so.

MS. DORSEY:  - that have been approved by ya’ll?

MR. ZABRINSKI:  No.  We have never approved any.  

MS. DORSEY:  You never approved any?

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Additional questions?  Alright.  Thank you, sir.

MR. ZABRINSKI:  Thank you.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Ms. Hopfensperger, you can come back for rebuttal, please.

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  I would just like to note that in the history of Ashford Homeowners’ Association, I am the only one that ever tried to follow the covenants and restrictions and apply to the ACC.  And they even admitted at one point they didn’t know how to take care of it.  They didn’t know what to do, how to – so I’ve been the only one who has ever gone to them and made the request.  One of the neighbors across the street that has been so adamantly against me; I kept his son for four years at the other house and I was perfectly okay.  I remember him standing in his driveway stating to me how wonderful it was that I had a – his son could ride the bus home from school.  He was still in the neighborhood with his friends.  But I became a burden to him once he – I built on the lot across the street.  It’s all that I can assume.  As far as my approval goes, I appealed it to the board.  They did not act correctly in their voting procedures.  I was not treated fairly and my big thing is that, you know, they’ve allowed all these other businesses but they don’t do anything unless someone complains and I don’t think that’s fair either.  So again I ask you for the special exception – one thing, my driveway is nineteen or – how many feet wide?  Eighteen feet wide.  We park two cars very easily side by side.  You could do down and forth with – you turn around, you come out, as far as being a traffic hazard or adding traffic I’m at the end of the community.  That’s where you come into the neighborhood.  It’s not like you’re traveling through the community and I’m causing traffic problems or being a burden on the streets.  I’m right at the edge of the community on a very large lot and so I just ask that –

MS. PERKINS:  You have a parking pad?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Yes.  I have a parking pad.

MS. PERKINS:  Where you can turn around?  Where you can use it as a turnaround?

MS. HOPFENSPERGER:  Right.  At one point that driveway will fit at least 15 cars.  There’s no reason for anybody to ever park on the street to block traffic.  No one will ever pull out of that driveway because I am on a grade there and at the top of that little hill and yes I don’t want to back out of it myself.  There is a blind spot.  I’m very much aware of that and that’s why I’ve made the accommodations with the driveway so that people wouldn’t have to ever back out of that driveway, for my own safety also as well as those around me.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Any additional questions for the applicant?  Alright.  Thank you, ma’am.  That concludes the testimony in this case.  The Chair will entertain discussion from the Board Members.  

MR. TOLBERT:  Mr. Chairman, I think that after reviewing the things that she’s made those things required that we look for and procedures and safety for the children I think, you know, from what I see that she met driveway, has a pad where you can turn around and not pull into the street.  Backing into the street to me would be a problem and this is – they’re able to turn around and pull out into the street.  And I understand that there’s a blind spot but, you know, there’s still safety in that by not backing into the street.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Additional discussion?

MS. PERKINS:  I’m still just in awe, you know, that people can operate a business and the county not know about it.  That is just – I am perplexed over that and so perplexed I’m wondering if you put any conditions on anybody are they going to be followed through with.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Well I think having experienced that, that unless somebody makes the county aware of it there’s virtually no way for them to know that a home occupation type of business is operating.  It’s impossible to canvass the entire county and find those things and I think the same would probably be true of the conditions.  If conditions are placed on the operation of a special exception then the county would have to rely on somebody making a complaint that those conditions were not being complied with in order to trigger action by the county.  I think any other expectation would be unrealistic.  Any other discussion by Members of the Board?  I’m not persuaded that the fact that a portion of the road is apparently not operating up to standards or wasn’t built up to standards that six cars coming up and down it for this home occupation are going to have any great deleterious effect on the road.  At the same time as I’ve said in the past I’m – I have great concern over the impact that operating a business in a residential neighborhood has on the character of the residential neighborhood in general and that always bothers me and it bothers me in this case.  I have concern over the fact that the operation of any type of business within a residential neighborhood has the potential of an adverse impact on the overall character of that neighborhood.  That’s my general concern with this type of request or special exception and it’s true in this case also.  Any further discussion by members of the Board?  If not, the Chair will entertain a motion.  

MR. TOLBERT:  Mr. Chairman, I make a motion that 05-85 be approved with the stipulation that abandonment within the 12 months.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.

MS. DORSEY:  May I amend or add to that motion?

MR. TOLBERT:  Yes.  

MS. DORSEY:  I’d like to add the conditions that a fence is installed before a business license is obtained.  And that a gate be placed on the bottom of the deck stairs to prevent children playing up and down those stairs.

MR. TOLBERT:  Okay.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Is there a second?

MS. DORSEY:  Second.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Its been moved and seconded that Case 05-87 SE be approved.

MS. DORSEY:  Can I do that?  I can’t do that.

MR. FARRAR:  You can’t second your own substitute motion.

MS. PERKINS:  Did she amend?  She amended it?

MR. FARRAR:  Well but I mean she made the amended motion.  I mean somebody else would have to second it.  

MS. PERKINS:  Second.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright then.  Now it’s been moved  – thank you.  Now it’s been moved and seconded that Case 05-87, oh excuse me, 05-85 be approved with the condition that abandonment of the use for 12 months will cause it to cease, that a fence be installed on the rear of the property and that a gate be installed to prevent children from accessing the deck area.  All in favor of that motion signify by raising their right hands.  Hold them up a minute so I can see.  Alright.  Those opposed?  

[Approved:  Branch,  Dorsey, Tolbert, Perkins; Opposed:  Branham, Brown; Absent:  Young]

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  You have your motion by four to two.  The Zoning Administrator will be in touch with you.   Mr. Price, next case.

CASE 05-87 SE:

MR. PRICE:  The next case is Item E, Case 05-87 Special Exception.  The applicant is Nancy Brown.  The applicant is requesting the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant a special exception to permit establishment of a family daycare on property zoned RS-2, single-family residential.  The location is 533 Chilhowie Road.  The lot’s almost a third of a lot – of an acre, excuse me.  The subject property has an existing single-family residential structure.  A forked driveway on the side of the property leads to the rear of the property and also along the side of the property.  A fence encloses the rear of the property.  The applicant proposes to establish a family daycare for a maximum of six children.  The ages of the children will range from newborn to five years of age.  The proposed hours of operation are 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.  This is located in Mill Creek Estates subdivision.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Nancy Brown.  Come forward and tell the Board what it is you want to do, please.

TESTIMONY OF NANCY BROWN:
NANCY BROWN:  Hi.  My name is Nancy Brown.  I’m at 533 Chilhowie Road.  As of now I’m not keeping any kids.  I was trying to get approved, you know, by the Board.  But I am certified to keep the kids and when I do open up my daycare I plan to provide a safe environment for my kids.  I really don’t want to start in my home but you got to start someway.  I was always taught you have to crawl before you can walk.  And by starting in my home that’s my only way.  I talked with the bishop at Mill Creek Baptist Church.  He did say I could use his church but like I say you got to start somewhere and I can go into the church but he said they’re getting ready to renovate it and he said he hate for me to start and then have to take the kids back out.  Then I talked with – went round to different neighbor – my neighborhood and talked with them.  Some – when I talked to different ones they agreed and then later on like as of yesterday Mr. Bob came to the house and told me that different ones coming to him and disapproving for me to do the daycare.  And I asked him why.  He said because the safety of the kids is the traffic.  So I guess he’s talking about loading and unloading which is I have - like I said my yard is fenced in and the backyard where they will be entrance and entering the kids and I do have, like I say two exits of the driveway.  It’s on the side where the garage and then coming inside into my yard.  So it’s not a problem.  They unload on the front yard it’s just the backyard way two exits like I say where they can come in and pick up the kids.  And like I said I did talk with the bishop at the church and he said that - Mr. Bob told me yesterday that he spoke with the bishop and the bishop said – he said that the bishop not aware of it.  So I called the bishop last night.  He said someone did came to him.  He didn’t specify who, that they did came to him and he said he didn’t told them that.  He said he told them that I had to write an affidavit and turn it to the church.  He’d have to get with the board and speak with the board and see what they say about it.  But then after he say they’re going to renovate that – the classroom, it’s told me to wait.  I said that’d be a good idea for me too because if - you have to build up your clientele and I say, you know, which I could, I wish I could go into a building.  Like I say if I do I can’t afford it and then I still be starting back where I started from.  So I’m asking y’all to honor me to start in my home with the kids.  And like my heart really goes out to kids and elders people because I drive a school bus and I start driving since ’02.  And it’s amaze how the kids are being dropped with no one at home to get them until the parents come.  Either they have, you know, their brother or sister watching them.  And my idea just happened people that can’t help their self.  And like I say I love kids and I’ll do anything it take for me to run this daycare and like I said and run it safe, meet the requirement that I need to make.  But like I said I’m not keeping any kids right now because like I said I want to get approved with everything.  I am certified.  I do have my CDA credential and like I say I speak with several members at the church and they don’t have no problem with it but then when I went to speak to Mr. Bob he was okay with it.  He told me to go talk to Ms. Gert.  I went and talked to her.  She didn’t have a problem with it.  So Ms. Gert sent me to – I can’t think of the lady right now but she’s the president of the community like where they have their meetings.  She’s the president of that.  I didn’t speak with her but I speak with her husband.  I left my number there with him for her to contact me if she have a problem with me keeping the kids.  I haven’t heard from her so I’m assuming it was okay.  Till as of yesterday and different – Mr. Bob come and say he was the president of community.  And, but like I say I want to run a safe daycare and whatever it takes for me to run this daycare I want to meet the requirements to do it and I wish you could honor me to run this daycare to the best of interest.  Thanks.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Questions?  Hold on, ma’am.  Questions for Ms. Brown?

MR. TOLBERT:  Yes, ma’am.  I see there’s a trampoline in the backyard.  Is there any protection for that, a fence around -

MS. BROWN:  There was – 

MR. TOBLERT:  - the trampoline?

MS. BROWN:  The trampoline was given to us as the people that was moving behind us gave it to me but if I need to get rid of it I will.  But if I can pad it and put a string around that rail, but like I say, I’m keeping infants and toddlers.  So they won’t even be using the trampoline.  

MR. TOLBERT:  Ma’am, I have children.  They just get in there and they might go in it and jump up and fall off. 

MS. BROWN:  That’s true too.

MR. TOLBERT:  But my question again to you.  If you’re approved will you have a way to isolate that trampoline?

MS. BROWN:  Yes.  I have a fence on the side where it can be locked in.  It’s the little fence on the side.  It can be locked in and can be locked out from the kids.  

MR. TOLBERT:  But that’s not the area where the kids are going to be playing?

MS. BROWN:  No, sir.  No, sir.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Excuse me, sir.  You’ll have to wait until you testify.  Excuse me.  Any other questions for Ms. Brown?  Alright.  Thank you, ma’am.

MS. BROWN:  Thanks.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  If someone – another Brown; is it Norman?  

TESTIMONY OF ROOSEVELT BROWN:

MR. BROWN:  Roosevelt Brown.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Did you want to testify, sir?

MR. BROWN:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I can’t hear you.

MR. BROWN:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Come forward, please.  

MR. BROWN:  My name is Roosevelt Brown and –

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I’m sorry.

MR. BROWN:  I just moved into the Columbia area but I was working over here for about 12 years.  I drive big truck for 12 years and I just – you know, whatever it takes for my wife to trying to get this daycare started because I know, you know, the whole family and she work with kids a whole lot all of her life and I think she’d make a good person to operate a daycare and whatever it take, you know, to – or whatever the community say that we need to do or correct, I’ll try to do it to satisfy everything and I don’t feel like there’ll be on problem for cars coming in like she says too.  There’s one side where maybe four cars can fit up in there and I then got an extra driveway on the side another two or three cars can get up there.  So whatever it take I’ll be willing to help and complete it.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Any questions for Mr. Brown?  Alright.  Thank you, sir.  You have some people signed up in opposition.  Mary Fitzsimmons.

TESTIMONY OF MARY FITZSIMMONS:
MS. FITZSIMMONS:  I’m Mary Fitzsimmons.  I live at 530 Chilhowie Road across the street from the Browns.  I’ve been living there over 27 years and when we moved there it was in the bylaws no businesses, no businesses from your home.  I’ve always been under that understanding and I know of no other businesses in the neighborhood and I am opposed to businesses in the neighborhood.  And she has an option of going to the church within a few months.  Why shouldn’t she just wait a few months and go there instead of opening one in her home and maybe opening a door to other businesses in the neighborhood.  And as she said, she talked my husband, Bob.  She called Mr. Bob and he came by our house last night and got a little irate with my husband on the front porch because he wanted his wife to open a business in her home.  And I was considering calling 911 when he was out there raising his voice and swinging his arms around on our front porch.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Any questions for Ms. Fitzsimmons?  Thank you, ma’am.  R.D. Fitzsimmons.  

TESTIMONY OF R. D. FITZSIMMONS:
MR. FITZSIMONS:  Hi.  I’m Robert D. FitzSimons.  I’m at 530 Chilhowie Road.  Same location, kind of katy-corner from the Browns.  Clear up a couple of things real quick.  I have talked to Ms. Brown on two occasions that I know of and she’s a very nice lady, very easy to get along with and I can appreciate what she wants to do.  But my main – I have some concerns over one is security.  Because their house is on a corner and it’s like a four-way stop there and the school buses stop there.  There is no fence in the front or along the side on the front part of that side of the house.  And the kids are out there quite often and I don’t, you know, without supervision.  So the kids – there’s no protection between the yard and the road and it’s a busy intersection.  In fact it’s the main intersection going through Mill Creek so that’s one concern is the security part.  The other is the number of children.  After having talked with Ms. Brown I’ve been led to believe that she already has five children and now the permit or the permission will be to have six more I guess.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  No, sir.

MR. FITZSIMONS:  Which would or is it a total of six including the ones she already has?  I don’t know.  This is one of my concerns is how many children are actually going to be over there.  The other thing with the preacher - no I’m not president of – I’m a block captain for our neighborhood watch and I’m sorry if I presented incorrectly.  But the reason I went to see her last night was to try to just be open and above because we had talked previous to that and having heard from others and thinking it over I wanted her to know what I was going to say when I came here to you today.  So that’s the reason I went to see her last night is to let her know in advance.  In fact I even said it would help if the preacher could put something in writing that she could bring to you and it would show that yes she can have her daycare center at the church, which like my wife said if she can have it at the church that might be the way to go.  And the final thing is working.  As she mentioned she does drive a school bus and she must have a lot of patience with children.  However, I asked her what are you going to do with the children while you’re driving the school bus and the first indication was that she told me that she was going to have somebody else take care of the children while she drove the school bus.  And then I think it was last night she indicated that if she did get permission to open this daycare center she’d quit her job.  So my concern there too is what happens to the children while she’s working.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Questions for Mr. Fitzsimmons?

MS. DORSEY:  Are you saying that she is operating a daycare or that she has five children?

MR. FITZSIMONS:  No.  She told me that she has five children of hers.

MS. DORSEY:  Her own?

MR. FITZSIMONS:  Her own, yeah.  So that’s what my question was going to be.  Are we now going to have six more –

MS. DORSEY:  Yeah.

MR. FITZSIMONS:  - children at that house?

MS. DORSEY:  Yeah.  Yeah.

MR. FITZSIMONS:  That’s the question there.

MS. DORSEY:   Okay.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any other questions for Mr. Fitzsimmons?  Alright.  Thank you, sir.  Gurley Jones.  

TESTIMONY OF GURLEY JONES:
MS. JONES:  My name is Gurley Jones and I live at 510 Chilhowie.  I live down the street from the Browns and I’m the one that Mrs. Brown referred to as Ms. Gurley and she did come to me and spoke with me about her intentions of opening a daycare center at that time.  And I didn’t say yea or nay, whether I was for or against.  But I do oppose opening a daycare in the residential area.  I’ve been there for 27 years and there’s – I’m retired and the community consists of several retirees and the community’s very serene and quiet and I just think of a business of any kind in the neighborhood is just not what the majority of the people want out there.  And the Browns I know they mean well.  If they could get their daycare center in the church I think it would please everybody because the church is on Mill Creek Parkway which is an entrance into the subdivision but it’s not in the subdivision so it would not be a disruption to the families and things that already live there.  So I just, you know, would hope that, you know, she would reconsider and postpone this until she can get her daycare center in the church and everybody would be happy.  But again like I said I just you know I am opposed to it and I hope that it’s not approved.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any questions for Ms. Jones?  Alright.  Thank you, ma’am.  Ms. Brown, you have an opportunity to come and rebut the testimony that you’ve heard.  

AUDIENCE MEMBER:  [inaudible]

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  And what’s your name, sir?

ROBERT SMITH:  Robert Smith.  [inaudible] the second page.  [inaudible]

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Well, alright, sir.  I don’t see your name here but if you want to sign up you know I think –

MR. PRICE:  Excuse me.  I think he signed up on –

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I think you may have signed up on the wrong one.  Come ahead.  Come ahead.  Hold off just a minute Ms. Brown, if you would.  Come to the podium, please.

TESTIMONY OF ROBERT SMITH:
MR. SMITH:  Excuse me.  Good afternoon.  My name is Robert C. Smith and I live at number 9 Belle Meade Place.  Me and my family have lived in the Mill Creek Estates for between – almost 23 years.  I rise in opposition to permitting the establishment of a daycare center in the community.  I’m not aware of any other businesses that exist in Mill Creek Estates.  As one of the previous witnesses indicated it’s a community of a number of retirees.  I happen to be one of them.  I retired from the Department of Justice about five, six years ago.  And I would just be opposed to the establishment of any business in Mill Creek Estates.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Any questions for Mr. Smith?  Alright.  Thank you, sir.

MR. SMITH:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Now Ms. Brown you can come forward with rebuttal.

MS. BROWN:  Like I say, I spoke with the bishop and he said like I can have it at the church but I like I said you got to start with somewhere.  If I do get that one – like I do have five kids of my own.  I love my kids and like I say when driving the school bus and you see how these kids being left alone all by theirself.  When you’re trying to help somebody I don’t understand why somebody gonna be behind you, you know, trying to you know tie you down, you know, which I mean there’s just a lot of kids in our neighborhood and, you know, they need help and I wish the community could pull together.  We can keep some of the kids out the streets.  You know, but like I say I am specializing infants and toddlers but like I say you got to start somewhere but like I say the bishop say I could use the church but like I say they’re fixing to renovate the building I say so in the meantime why they, you know, getting the building established back together at least I could start keeping some kids, you know.  And my kids won’t be in the way of nobody.  You know, they’ll be in the house and, you know, I just don’t understand why, you know, they’re saying they’re living in a community for so many years.  I understand that, they’re retirement but I mean they had kids one time, you know what I’m saying.  Everybody needs somebody and I just don’t understand why, you know, they don’t want nobody to help the kids.  And, you know, they’re saying, you know, they have these meetings which I never attend the meetings because always I did after school with the after school program, you know, taking kids home.  But I just don’t understand how, you know, they don’t want no help in the community.  I could have went and start keeping kids without, you know, doing it the wrong way but I want to do it the right way, you know, and that’s my ministry to help kids.  Like I say if I don’t start in the community I’m going to start somewhere and I wish the community could be behind me 100%.  You know, I mean that’s what that lady say.  They don’t know that business is out there but business is out there.  I’m not going to sit here and call no names but business is in the community.  But they’re going by the wrong way of doing it.  By me coming open and trying to do it the right way I wish they would be 100% behind me but they’re not.  I mean that’s their choice but I wish they would reconsider me to open up this daycare.  And like I say if I get one student, I’ll be - one child I’ll be fine with that.  Because like I say you got to start somewhere.  Thanks.

MS. DORSEY:  Ma’am, ma’am.  How many children do you have?

MS. BROWN:  I have five.

MS. DORSEY:  And what are their ages.

MS. BROWN:  13, 11, 7, 5 and 1.

MS. DORSEY:  Okay.  And you’re proposing to keep up to six children –

MS, BROWN:  The rest of them –

MS. DORSEY:  - in addition to yours?

MS. BROWN:  I think I can keep up to five because the rest of the kids – like I’m specializing infants and toddlers.  The only person who would be home is my one year old.  The rest of them would be in school so while the daycare going on they’d be in school anyway.  

MS. DORSEY:  How about after school?

MS. BROWN:  I’m only specializing infants and toddlers.  So I couldn’t keep them now anyway because like I say I want to start at home to build up my clientele and once the church get established I can take it to the church and I could spread the board and keep any age plus up to after school but I just can’t do it in my home because I only specialize infants and toddlers.  

MR. BRANHAM:  Who would assist you with taking care of the children?

MS. BROWN:  I talked with this girl down the street, Mrs. Michele Yates and then I also have sisters.  I have seven sisters and if I need to go to the doctor or go somewheres someone will be there to help me with those kids.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Do you intend to still keep driving the school bus if this special exception is granted? 

MS. BROWN:  Yes, sir.  I have no choice.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Who’s going to take care of the children while you’re driving a school bus?

MS. BROWN:  Excuse me?

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Who’s going to take care of the children?

MS. BROWN:  No.  If I get the kids, I won’t drive.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Oh, alright.

MS. BROWN:  No.  I specialize in keeping kids and that’s what I want to do but since I had my CDL I just went on ahead and start driving bus to build up my clientele because when we moved there I didn’t know nobody.  So like I say you got to start somewhere.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  How long, do you know how long it’s going to be before this church is going to be renovated or –

MS. BROWN:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  - whatever is going on with that?

MS. BROWN:  He said he’d get back with me.  But I just was saying by talking with him last night and I told him that I would love to, you know, do it at the church but like he said they’re fixing to renovate the building.  But if it take me doing it from this school term and during the summer and by then when school start back then maybe I could be able to move it to the building.  If I can’t move into that church – in the meantime I’m still going to be looking for somewhere else if the church not finished.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Additional questions for Ms. Brown?

MR. TOLBERT:  In your application it says newborn to five years of age.  Now you’re changing that to say that it’s just newborn?

MS. BROWN:  Excuse me?

MR. TOLBERT:  On your application it says the age of the children would range from newborn to five years of age.  And the proposed hours of operation from 6:00 to 6:00.  Is that your testimony?  Is that what you – but I hear you saying that you’re just going to keep newborns so I –

MS. BROWN:  No.  But - when they say infants and toddlers that is from zero to five years old.  

MR. TOLBERT:  Yeah, but then you said – now what your age of your children again?

MS. BROWN:  My kids are 13, 11, 7, 5, and 1.

MS. PERKINS:  How many are you allowed to keep with that?

MS. BROWN:  Five.

MS. PERKINS:  At what age?

MS. BROWN:  From zero to five.  Well [inaudible] says zero to four years old, until they start going to school.  

MS PERKINS:  In addition to your children.  Because they were not - in addition – what I was trying to figure out, if you’re having five children is there a number allotted from DSS counting the children in your home?

MS. BROWN:  I can keep five kids with my one year old there.

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.

MS. BROWN:  So if my five year’s old is there, I can only keep four.

MS. PERKINS:  So you’re operating from 6:00 to 6:00.  What time do your children get home?

MS. BROWN:  They should get home the last one about five.  Well see they’re going to be going to after school tutoring because they’re in this Title I program and I signed them up in that –

MS. PERKINS:  What time do they get home?

MS. BROWN:  About seven at least.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  There’s no questions for Ms. Brown?  Alright.  Thank you, ma’am.

MS. BROWN:  Alright.  Thanks. 

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  That concludes the testimony.  The Chair will entertain discussion by the Board.

MS. DORSEY:  I’ve got some concerns about this four-way stop and the location of this home at a four-way stop.  And I’m concerned about the number of children in that house at any one time open until 6:00 but I’d say I’m not real comfortable with the location.  That’s one of the major things at a four-way stop.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Additional discussion?  I’m going to reiterate the same concern that I stated with respect to the previous case and that is any time you interject a business of some sort into a residential neighborhood I believe it has an impact on that neighborhood and that impact normally is not favorable.  In this instance it seems like there’s some uncertainty on how this is going to operate.  It doesn’t seem to me that it would be unreasonable to wait until this church is renovated if that’s an option.  Certainly it isn’t going to take that long I don’t believe and that would resolve the concerns in the neighborhood and still permit Ms. Brown to do what it is that she wants to do only at a different location.  Any additional discussion?  If not the Chair will entertain a motion.  

MR. BRANHAM:  Mr. Chairman, I would like to make a motion that Special Exception 05-87 be denied.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  There’s a motion to deny the request.  Is there a second?

MS. DORSEY:  Second.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded that case 05-87 SE be denied.  Those in favor of the motion indicate by raising their hands.  

MS. PERKINS:  What’s his reason?  I didn’t hear –

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  What’s that?

MS. PERKINS:  What was his reason?  I didn’t hear.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  He didn’t express a reason.

MR. TOLBERT:  He just said denied.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Those in favor of the motion indicate by raising their hands.  Those opposed?  

[Approved to deny:  Branch, Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Opposed:  Tolbert, Perkins; Absent:  Young]

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Ms. Brown your request has been denied.  The Zoning Administrator will be in touch with you.  Mr. Price, next case.  Before we take up the next case, Mr. Price has signaled that he would like a two-minute break.  

 [Break]
CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Mr. Price, the next case, please.

CASE 05-88 SE:
MR. PRICE:  The next item is item F, Case 05-88 Special Exception.  The applicant is Ailene Banks.  The applicant is requesting the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant a special exception to permit establishment of a family daycare on property zoned RS-2, single-family residential.  The location is 237 Green Rose Road.  The lot’s about a fifth of an acre.  The subject property has an existing single-family residential structure, a double driveway leads to a garage.  A fence encloses the rear of the property.  The applicant proposes to establish a family daycare for a maximum of six children.  The ages of the children will range from newborn to eleven years of age.  The proposed hours of operation are 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m.  I think that it might be subject to change but right now we have it as 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m.  The subject property is located within the Winslow subdivision.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Mrs. Banks.  Please come forward, please.  Tell the Board what it is you want to do.  

TESTIMONY OF AILENE BANKS:

MS. BANKS:  My name is Ailene Banks and I live at 237 Green Rose Road.  I would like to open a daycare for six children at night from 7:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.  I requested nights because I know how it is to work at night and not have proper daycare sometimes.  So what I decided to do is open a daycare for parents who work during the evening or work at night.  Parents that go to school, they need to drop their children off for like two hours or so and I’m just here requesting zoning permission.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Do you have any children of your own, Ms. Banks?

MS. BANKS:  Yes.  My youngest two are 13 years old.  A set of twins that are 13.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  And how many days a week would this be?

MS. BANKS:  Monday through Friday.  I will make some exceptions for some parents who need maybe a Saturday or Sunday.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Looking at the photographs here, it looks like you’ve got a driveway with several automobiles in it.  How do you propose to load and unload these children off the right-of-way?

MS. BANKS:  I’m not really – the green truck, the white truck there is not mine.  That’s not my truck.  I do have one but that’s not mine.  And that’s a two-car garage and the red car just happens not to be in the garage because we don’t pull it in during the day at this present time.  But if we needed to pull it in we would.  And there’s a tree there that’s now gone and on the side of the house there was also a tree and we took both of them down for safety reasons.  Not only for the daycare but just for our own safety reason because you couldn’t see around it.  So we took that tree down.  But what you can do on the side of the house, you can actually pull in on the side if needed to and still back out but not back out in the driveway.  You could go on the side of the house and back out and still turn around in the driveway right there on that side.  That tree there is no longer there on the side.  So if you need to drop your children off you can still pull up there, walk your children to the house because you also have to consider again this is night time, 7:00 p.m. and up so we had to make it as safety as well.  So you could still drop your children off, pull out and still head back into the traffic facing, not pulling out backward but turning your car around in the parking lot.

MS. PERKINS:  So on the side you would pull up, turn around and then just --

MS. BANKS:  Right.  And then - correct.  

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.

MR. TOLBERT:  I saw that vicious dog in the backyard.  I saw a house for it.  How do you plan and – don’t tell me that dogs don’t bite so tell me what you plan to do?

MS. BANKS:  I believe anybody has teeth can bite.  

MR. TOLBERT:  Thank you.

MS. BANKS:  He weighs about ten pounds and he is in the backyard but a night he comes in the house.  He’s only allowed on the second floor when he’s in the home.  Only the second floor.  And he also has a kennel in the two-car garage if we need to put him in the kennel sometimes.  But he’s not allowed on the first floor of the home and he’s only out during the day while the children, you know, are not home.  He’s out during the day.  

MS. DORSEY:  Where is he at night?

MS. BANKS:  Upstairs on the second floor.  

MR. BRANHAM:  How do you prevent him from going to the I guess the other floors should I say?

MS. BANKS:  Onto the first floor?  There’s a gate there –

MR. BRANHAM:  Okay.

MS. BANKS:  -- that we lock that he doesn’t come past that gate.  He knows he only comes down when it’s time to go out.

MR. BRANCH:  So you children will be on the first floor?  The children that you’re planning to keep?  

MS. BANKS:  Right.  Only on the first floor.  

MR. BRANHAM:  How many people, how many total people live in your home now at night?

MS. BANKS:  There’s my husband and two children.  There’s four of us.

MR. BRANHAM:  So that’s four?

MS. BANKS:  Correct.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  And they’re going to be upstairs with the dog –

MS. BANKS:  Right.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  - is that basically it?

MS. BANKS:  Right.  When he comes in he goes directly upstairs or he goes to his kennel.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  No.  I mean the rest of the family at night is upstairs?

MS. BANKS:  Oh, yeah.

MS. DORSEY:  You would be operating the daycare all night?  

MS. BANKS:  Yes.

MS. DORSEY:  You would be on the first floor?

MS. BANKS:  Correct.

MR. TOLBERT:  I didn’t see a layout of your home but given the age that you’re going to have kids at night are you going to be able to separate the kids or how – what kind of sleeping arrangements are you going to have for those kids at night?

MS. BANKS:  Well on the first floor you can lay down – I have two ways that you can do it.  We can either have mats or I can have – I forget the correct name for them but they’re little mats that they can lay on.

MR. TOLBERT:  Cots?

MS. BANKS:  Yeah.  The cots.  The kind that you can either stack up or just put them out – that you can spread out.  

MR. BRANCH:  Do you already have your clientele, your kids that you’re planning on keeping? 

MS. BANKS:  No.  Not at this present time.  I [inaudible] step by step.  So this is my first step.

MR. BRANCH:  So - well, all six.  If you get all six children, will all six be staying all night or for a couple of hours?

MS. BANKS:  Well that all depends on what the parents need.  You’ll have some parents that work eleven to seven.  I may have some that maybe just in the evening maybe take an evening class and just needs somebody to keep their children for like two hours.  I don’t think everybody would come at one time.  Just say everybody works eleven to seven.  There’s no way that all six parents will pull up at 10:00 because there’s always somebody has to be to work a little bit earlier.  There’s some parents they won’t even show up every day.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Ms. Banks, have you discussed this with your neighbors at all?

MS. BANKS:  I just actually bought this house in June.  I’ve discussed it with one neighbor next door to me because I wasn’t sure who the housing association was with and her name –

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  You bought your house when?  I’m sorry.  

MS. BANKS:  My housing association – when I just bought my house in June –

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Okay.

MS. BANKS:  -- so I wasn’t aware of, you know, nobody came by and gave a booklet so I had to find out who was what and who was where.  So I’ve only discussed it with one neighbor and that was the one that lives next door to me.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  And what was their reaction?

MS. BANKS:  She was fine with it.  She just gave me the name of who I should call and discuss it with them and let them know what I was trying to do.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  And did you do that?

MS. BANKS:  Yes.  I did.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  And what was the response from them?

MS. BANK:  He actually said it was okay.  I spoke to the president.  He gave me a letter stating that it was okay because I’m not the only daycare that, you know, that’s in Winslow.  There’s actually two more.  No.  You actually – you don’t have the letter.  I just received it the letter from –

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Would you mind sharing that with the Board, please?

MS. BANKS:  Sure.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any additional questions for Ms. Banks?  

MR. BRANCH:  Do you have any other job or this will be your full-time?

MS. BANKS:  This will be my full-time.  I do work PRN on an as-needed basis at a hospital.  

MS. DORSEY:  Well would you continue to do that and if you did what about the children?

MS. BANKS:  Well PRN means that you make your own schedule; whenever you choose.  So let’s just say if I know on Saturday I won’t have anyone –

MS. DORSEY:  Okay.

AILENE BANKS:  - I may choose to go into work at that time.  Because the hospital carries my retirement so I’d like to stay in the retirement fund.

MS. DORSEY:  Sure.  Okay.  So you wouldn’t work – but you would choose not to work on the nights that you had any children?

MS. BANKS:  Correct.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any other questions for Ms. Banks?  

MS. PERKINS:  I’m still – that 10 pound dog.  

MS. BANKS:  He’s actually five pounds.  I did bring the paperwork.

MS. PERKINS:  Oh.  No.  I, you know, I was just – would you keep him in the kennel?  You said you had one in the garage?

MS. BANKS:  Right.

MS. PERKINS:  I’m just think you know dogs are like kids, they’re so playful and he might jump that fence.  

MS. BANKS:  He’s well-trained.  He doesn’t go over the fence.

MS. PERKINS:  I know we ought – that’s –

MS. BANKS:  He doesn’t go over the fence but if I felt that there was going to be a problem he would definitely go in his kennel if there was a problem.  Because you see you have some people that’s allergic to dogs or what have you.

MS. PERKINS:  Well would you keep him in the kennel?  That’s what I’m asking.

MS. BANKS:  Yes.

MS. PERKINS:  If you had children in the home?

MS. BANKS:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any additional questions for Ms. Banks?  Alright.  Thank you, ma’am.  We do have some folks signed up in opposition.  K. Timalee?

TESTIMONY OF KAY TAMAZI:
TAMAZI:  My name is Kadedra Tamazi and I live at 236  I am directly across the street from her.  I wish she had spoken to some of the other neighbors because we didn’t know it would be operating at night which really cuts our concern out almost to zero.  The one neighbor she did ask has no children there so she wouldn’t have a concern.  She’s a cop.  She wouldn’t have a concern.  The only thing I was really concerned about was the parking situation because when I come home in the evenings I don’t want a lot of cars on the street.  I want to be able to pull into my driveway and go home.  And the type people that she would be keeping the children for will it start bringing people that will cause our cars to be broken into, our houses?  But since she said it’s from 7:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. or overnight that does eliminate a lot of questions that I have for her.  So, you know, I just wish she had talked to some of the other neighbors, those of us with children.  I have grandchildren who are always at my house so I was really concerned because when my grandkids come over I need to know that they’re safe where I’m living.  And I’ve been there for over 10 years now so I don’t have anything else.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Thank you.  Tracy Hilton.

TESTIMONY OF TRACY HILTON:
MS. HILTON:  Hi.  My name is Tracy Hilton.  I live at 240 and too agree with Ms. Tamazi.  If we would have been aware that she was going to have overnight children we probably wouldn’t be here.  And I’ve been in Winslow now for 12 years and my concern was again the traffic.  In the morning directly from where she lives up to the left there’s a bus stop.  That is where the children are picked up and dropped off three times in the morning and that was really my main concern was traffic and the concern of the safety of the children.  But I did hear someone say that the time was subject to change.

MS. PERKINS:  She did say from 7:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.

MS. RACY HILTON:  No.  I think when it was announced, when it was announced.

MR. PRICE:  When - I was going according to what the original application was and that was from 5:00 to 8:00, and I believe she, Ms. Banks stated 7:00 to 8:00 so we just need to get that corrected before, you know, you make a motion.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.

MS. DORSEY:  Okay.

MS. HILTON:  Okay.  So that we’re talking p.m. and not a.m.  Okay.  That’s all I have.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Thank you, ma’am.  Ms. Banks, I don’t think there’s anything that you need to rebut since there was really nothing brought up.  

MS. PERKINS:  She should state for the Record the change [inaudible].

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  However, if you would come forward and make it a matter of Record, please exactly what your operating hours are going to be to eliminate any confusion.

MS. BANKS:  It will be from 7:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. but you have to give in count that you have some parents that work 11:00 to 7:00.  So you’ve go to give them 30 minutes to at least get to my home.  So we’re talking about to 7:30 give or take.

MS. DORSEY:  You’ve got to include that.

MS. BANKS:  Yes.

MS DORSEY:  In your – in what you state.  You’ve got to consider it how much time.

MS. BANKS:  Yes.  So I’m going to say until 7:30 in the morning.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  7:00 pm to 7:30?

MS. BANKS:  Right.  And then you have some – let me move to 6:00 in the evening because again I didn’t include the 30 minutes that people, people that – we have nurses that work from 7:00 p to 7:00 a so you’ve got to allow them the 30 minutes before, the 30 minutes after.  

MS. PERKINS:  Tell us your time.

MS. DORSEY:  You’ve got to, you - 

MS. BANKS:  Yeah.  So let me just change it to 6:00 p.m. to let’s just say 8:00 a.m.

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.  Okay.  You don’t need 30 more minutes do you?

MS. BANKS:  No.  Well, you know, what – you know, I understand your concern but I don’t feel like people will be parking but let’s just take for example.  We all have visitors because there was a time that you actually had a party at your house and –

MS. BANKS:  - across the street.

MS. PERKINS:  Well we don’t want to get into that.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Ms. Banks, address your remarks to the Board.

MS. BANKS:  Okay.  She was asking me a question.  I don’t feel like – I think out of common courtesy people know that you live in a residence and that if I advised them to, you know, have common courtesy for the people that live in the subdivision not to park on that side of the street.  But they’re not parking there to stay there.  

MS. DORSEY:  Are you aware that you can’t have parking for these children on the street?  It has to be off-street?

MS. BANKS:  Yes.  Yeah.

MS. DORSEY:  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  I’d like -

MS. PERKINS:  State your time again, please, ma’am.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Yeah.  Thank you.

MS. BANKS:  Okay.  From 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m.

MS. PERKINS:  Okay.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  And I think that raised another concern.  Come forward, please.  Ms. Hilton, is that right?

MS. HILTON:  Well that does raise a problem for buses then.  Our buses start picking up our young elementary students at 7:15 in the morning and they’re in at I want to say 7:44 high school students.  So again where she lives there is a bus stop right there to the left that picks up the students starting with the elementary students – sorry starting with the middle school students, elementary students and then high school students.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Thank you.

MS. PERKINS:  So did you – let me ask you this.  Did you have objections to the 7:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. hours?

MS. HILTON:  Not the 7:00 a.m. because by then the school buses are not arriving.

MS. PERKINS:  But you’re objecting to the 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m.?

MS. HILTON:  Yeah because you have – then you have the students, you have the students walking down to that bus stop and directly from where she lives up to the left there is, there’s a bus stop and Winslow is a big community and there’s a lot of kids in the community.  And that stop where she is, at [inaudible] those students are coming where you can’t see it.  They’re coming from around – Green Rose Road is the second main road in Winslow.  You have Winslow Way which is the main road and Green Rose Road is the next busiest traffic in Winslow because it connects.  It goes from Winslow to the right of Winslow Way and then to the left of Winslow Way so it’s a very, very busy, busy street right there where we live is a very busy street.  And yes I’m always calling, I’m always calling the Sheriff’s Department.  We have speeders coming through because we do.  We have a lot of teenagers driving.  We even have adults in that area that speed and in the morning it’s always a big concern because you’ve got parents leaving for work, students getting on the bus and now we’re going to add more traffic with people coming in with child care and it’s very, very busy in the morning at that area right there.  I have two students.  I have one that’s getting ready to graduate this year and I have one that’s going to high school and I’ve been there for 12 years so I know.  There’s a lot of traffic right there in that area.  So anything after 7:00 is going to be a problem with traffic in the morning.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any additional questions for Ms. Hilton?  Alright.  Thank you, ma’am.  

MS. TAMAZI:  [inaudible]

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Yes ma’am.

MS. TAMAZI:  May I have you click the pictures please?

OFFICER SPEARMAN:  Which way?

MS. TAMAZI:  To the house directly – I’ll tell you when to stop.  Stop.  See that yard?  That’s me.  If I have a party of anything everybody can park in my yard.  I have a driveway and I have a backyard that’s large enough to put another house.  So I don’t block traffic and that is a concern to me because I have an 82-year-old mother who lives with me.  If the ambulance needs to come or whatever I need for it to be in and out so I’m not picking on my neighbor, I’m not trying to close her down.  I don’t care about her operating it, make your money legally how you can but I want to ensure that traffic is not blocking the street because it is a problem.  When you’re trying to pull out to your driveway and a car across the street is sitting right there – we’ve had accidents like that.  We’ve had accidents where the car came out the driveway, didn’t see the car on the street and then they want to give you a ticket because you’re pulling out of your driveway and somebody’s parked in the middle of the street.  But I’ve got enough yard.  I can Fit about 30 cars in my yard.  I don’t need to park on the street.  Thank you.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, Ms. Banks.  Do you have any rebuttal that you wish to present?  Alright.  That concludes the testimony and the Board will entertain discussion.  

MR. TOLBERT:  Mr. Chairman I think that hours of operation kind of makes this thing a little bit more complex than it was from the start.  I think 7:00 to 7:00 started out good but a little bit of extra flexibility it seems to encounter a little bit of problem.  And I understand a subdivision, I understand the traffic impact and I concur that it could be a problem because if, you know, you give them 30 minutes now, you give them 30 minutes from 7:00 to 7:30.  Now you’re giving them 30 more minutes from 7:30 to 8:00 and the next thing you be wanting to give them 30 more minutes from 8:00 to 8:30.  So, you know, I really feel if it was really thought out properly and with a firm commitment of the hours before we just trying to keep making it flexible, you know, it makes it kind of tough for me to decide.  You keep jumping, you know, well I’ve got one other parent I’m going to think about 30 more minutes; another parent -  if you set a precedent from the start then we don’t have to make no changes and that’s got me confused now.  I’m confused now. You’re getting into the bus traffic time and all those kids walking cause it’s not like the bus stop is all over the community.  They either have one or two stops in the community and everybody’s got to get there.  And, you know, just like my kid they’re going to walk down the street.  They’re not going to look back and see if anybody’s pulling out a [inaudible] and if somebody’s been working all night it’s kind of difficult for them to maintain a level of full function after working all night.  Because I know if I stay up half the night I’m not functioning well.  So that’s just a concern with the operation of the night time daycare center in a neighborhood for me.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Well I might agree with you if I thought all six of the parents were going to show up simultaneously.  But I don’t think that’s going to happen.  If it did it would be extremely unusual I believe.  So I’m not persuaded that that’s really a significant problem either to the children walking to the bus anymore than the cars are that are leaving the subdivision and going to the – going to work or wherever they might be going.  So – and while – as I’ve said before I normally am not favorably inclined toward these types of businesses in residential neighborhoods, obviously the homeowners’ association doesn’t feel that this is going to adversely impact the neighborhood so I don’t know I’m in a position to superimpose my judgment over the judgment of the people who live in the neighborhood.  Any additional discussion?  

MS. DORSEY:  I’m afraid I agree about the homeowners association but I thought Mr. Tolbert brought up a good point.  The hours of the operation going back and forth that way.  And I know Winslow very well.  It’s a huge subdivision and that is a busy street and I don’t like the uncertainty about hours of operation and I don’t think that we can get any certainty about that.  I think it could impact the school bus traffic.  I’m not looking – not feeling as comfortable about it as I was at first.  

MR. BRANHAM:  I have to agree with Mr. Brown.  I think if you had six families coming and going at one time whether it was 7:00 or 8:00 would make a world of difference.  It could impact the neighborhood but I don’t think – and there again like the lady said it maybe some people picking the children up at 6:00 and maybe some people picking them up at midnight or whatever.  I don’t think you’re going to have – if you would have to I don’t think you’d have more than two or three families picking them up at the 8:00 deadline in the morning.  That’s just my opinion now.  You know, I really don’t see the hours making a whole lot of difference in this case.  I think the other points that’s been brought out about the size of the house and so forth meets our zoning requirements.  And she’s trying to make the hours flexible for the people that would be bringing their children there to give her some flexibility.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Any additional discussion?  Hearing none the Chair will entertain a motion.

MS. PERKINS:  Mr. Chair, I’d like to say that we grant a special exception to 05-88.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Motion to approve.  Is there a second?

MR. BRANHAM:  I’ll second.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded that Case 05-88 SE be approved.  All in favor signify by raising their hand.  Opposed?  

[Approved:  Branham, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Opposed:  Branch, Dorsey; Absent:  Young]

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Ms. Banks your request has been approved.  The Zoning Administrator will be in touch.

MR. PRICE:  I’m sorry.  Who voted against that?

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Pardon?

MR. PRICE:  Okay.

MS. PERKINS:  Three and three.

MR. BRANCH:  That was a four and two.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  No.  It’s four and two.

MS. PERKINS:  Four and two.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Next item on the agenda is approval of the July minutes.

MS. PERKINS:  So moved.

MR. TOLBERT:  Second.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  It’s been moved and seconded that the July minutes be approved.  All in favor indicate by raising their hand.  

[Approved:  Branham, Dorsey, Brown, Tolbert, Perkins; Abstained:  Branch; Absent:  Young]

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  Any other business, Mr. Price?  

MR. PRICE:  Yes.  I guess I can always e-mail it to y’all.  There is another SCAPA meeting – well, I don’t if it’s a SCAPA meeting.  Yes.  One of those required meetings, you know, for all boards and commissions to get their hours.  It will be August 23rd.  I will get you the necessary paperwork.  It’s going to be at the ETV building again as it was before.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Okay.  

MR. TOLBERT:  August 23.

MS. PERKINS:  What time?  Same time?

MR. PRICE:  It should be the same time but once again I’ll get copies of that and give it to you.  

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright, if you would.  Any other matters to come before the Board?  

MR. PRICE:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN BROWN:  Alright.  In that case meeting is adjourned.  

[Adjourned 4:10 p.m.]

